
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, January 12, 2016 @ 7:00 P.M.

Location: Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg
Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim
Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are
unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via
email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:

2. Minutes and Reports:

 Minutes: Finance Committee (11/24/2015), Public Safety Committee (11/19/2015),
Redevelopment Authority (10/14/2015), Business Park North Committee (11/24/2015),
Planning Commission (11/9/2015), and Public Works Committee (11/17/2015)

3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Council Minutes: December 8, 2015

5. PUBLIC HEARING: to consider special assessments for installation of sanitary sewer,
storm sewer, water and street improvements on Hults Road and Jackson Street, within the
City of Stoughton and levying of special assessments to pay for same. The special
assessments relate to the following parcels:

Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8150-2
Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8412-2
Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8436-2
Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8451-2
Parcel No. 281-0510-014-8473-2

OLD BUSINESS

6. O-20-2015- Amending Section 2-688 of the Code of Ordinances relating to Electronic
Preservation of Records (Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee recommend
approval 5-0)

SECOND READING

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



NEW BUSINESS

7. O-1-2016- An ordinance amending the zoning classification for properties owned by
Dhillion Petroleum LLC and located at 1009 W Main St and 308 S Gjertson Street from
PB- Planned Business to PD- Planned Development (General Development Plan)
(Planning Commission recommends approval 6-0)

FIRST READING

8. R-1-2016-Final resolution levying special assessments against the benefited properties
for the Hults Road and Jackson Street related Improvements (Finance Committee meets
January 12, 2016)

9. R-2-2016- Resolution authorizing the conveyance of Lot 14 Stoughton Business Park
(Business Park North Committee recommends approval 6-0 & Finance Committee meets
January 12, 2016)

10. R-3-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to allow the use of an
outdoor furnace at 556 E Main Street, to burn only clean wood, until May 1, 2016 (Public
Safety Committee recommends approval 3-2)

11. R-4-2016- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request,
Certified Survey Map (CSM) by James Steindl, for property located at 981 Collins Road,
Town of Dunkirk, Wisconsin (Planning Commission recommends approval 6-0)

12. R-5-2016- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request,
Certified Survey Map (CSM) by Matt Hamacher for property located 3279 State
Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Wisconsin (Planning Commission recommends
approval 6-0)

13. R-6-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated job
description and compensation rate increase to $39.42 for the Utilities Electric System
Supervisor position (Personnel Committee recommends approval 5-0)

14. R-7-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the rate of
compensation to $24.42 for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist
(Personnel Committee approval 5-0)

15. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By:
Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Paul Lawrence





 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, January 12, 2016 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg 


Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim 


Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A 


QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are 


unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via 


email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


 


 Minutes: Finance Committee (11/24/2015), Public Safety Committee (11/19/2015), 


Redevelopment Authority (10/14/2015), Business Park North Committee (11/24/2015), 


Planning Commission (11/9/2015), and Public Works Committee (11/17/2015) 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  (*Please note:  Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda) 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. Council Minutes: December 8, 2015 


 


5. PUBLIC HEARING:  to consider special assessments for installation of sanitary sewer, 


 storm sewer, water and street improvements on Hults Road and Jackson Street, within the 


 City of Stoughton and levying of special assessments to pay for same. The special 


 assessments relate to the following parcels: 


  Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8150-2 


  Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8412-2 


  Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8436-2 


  Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8451-2 


  Parcel No. 281-0510-014-8473-2 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


6. O-20-2015- Amending Section 2-688 of the Code of Ordinances relating to Electronic 


 Preservation of Records (Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee recommend 


 approval 5-0) 


         SECOND READING 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


7. O-1-2016- An ordinance amending the zoning classification for properties owned by 


 Dhillion Petroleum LLC and located at 1009 W Main St and 308 S Gjertson Street from 


 PB- Planned Business to PD- Planned Development (General Development Plan) 


 (Planning Commission recommends approval 6-0) 


          FIRST READING 


 


8. R-1-2016-Final resolution levying special assessments against the benefited properties 


 for the Hults Road and Jackson Street related Improvements (Finance Committee meets 


 January 12, 2016) 


 


9. R-2-2016- Resolution authorizing the conveyance of Lot 14 Stoughton Business Park 


 (Business Park North Committee recommends approval 6-0 & Finance Committee meets 


 January 12, 2016) 


 


10. R-3-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to allow the use of an 


 outdoor furnace at 556 E Main Street, to burn only clean wood, until May 1, 2016 (Public 


 Safety Committee recommends approval 3-2) 


 


11. R-4-2016- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request, 


 Certified Survey Map (CSM) by James Steindl, for property located at 981 Collins Road, 


 Town of Dunkirk, Wisconsin (Planning Commission recommends approval 6-0) 


 


12. R-5-2016- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request, 


 Certified Survey Map (CSM) by Matt Hamacher for property located 3279 State 


 Highway 138,  Town of Rutland, Wisconsin (Planning Commission recommends 


 approval 6-0) 


 


13. R-6-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated job 


 description and compensation rate increase to $39.42 for the Utilities Electric System 


 Supervisor position (Personnel Committee recommends approval 5-0) 


 


14. R-7-2016- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the rate of 


 compensation  to $24.42 for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist 


 (Personnel Committee approval 5-0) 


 


15.    ADJOURNMENT 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Paul Lawrence 


 








PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, November 19, 2015
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Present: Chair, Michael Engelberger, Alderpersons, Regina Hirsch, Scott Truehl, Tim Swadley,
and Mayor Donna Olson


Guests: Greg Leck, Sherry Johnson, and Laura Anderson


Call to Order: Chair Engelberger called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m.


Communications: None


Approval of the October 28, 2015 Public Safety Minutes :


Motion by Truehl, to approve the minutes of the October 28, 2015 Public Safety Meetings,
second by Swadley. Motion carried 5-0


Application for an Operator License: Johnson, Sherry


Sherry Johnson addressed the committee regarding the denial for her application to receive
an Operator license. Chief Leck noted that he denied the application due to an unpardoned
felony charge that occurred 20 years prior. Hirsch stated that as long as she had completed
all of her required courses with any charge that her application shouldn’t be denied for a
conviction from 20 years ago.


Motion by Swadley, to approve the application for an Operator License: Johnson, Sherry,
second by Hirsch. Motion failed 3-2, with Engelberger, Truehl and Mayor Olson voting noe.


Request to review potential traffic conflicts at 400 S Van Buren Street


Chief Leck explained to the committee that this address is the site of a potential new
apartment complex and that the Planning Commission had referred this item to the Public
Safety Committee for its input. Committee discussion centered around potential
parking/traffic problems with the creation of this new building. Chief Leck explained that he
has no current concerns with the parking or traffic, although the traffic may become
congested at certain times of the day. The committee couldn’t see any potential traffic or
parking problems at this time, but can’t truly assess the problem until the construction is
complete.


Motion by Truehl, to approve the current building plan along with the installation of
sidewalks, second by Swadley. Motion carried 5-0.


Request to review parking issues/ concerns at Main Street


Engelberger stated that this request had come from the Yahara River Co-op Grocery Store
regarding the on-street parking in front of the store. Laura Anderson, a representative from
the grocery store stated the she has had many customers complain about the lack of
parking in front of the store. She also proposed that three parking stalls in front of the store
be restricted to thirty minute parking only. Committee discussion continued regarding this
potential change. The committee decided to discuss this issue further after the new year
with the other business owners, from that block, and to also direct City staff to draft an
preliminary parking ordinance for committee review.







Future agenda items:


-Neighborhood Watch Procedures


- Best Practices for Temporary Liquor Licenses


-Sidewalk specifications


Adjournment


Motion by Truehl, to adjourn the meeting of the Public Safety Committee, second by
Swadley. Motion carried 5-0. The meeting of the Public Safety Committee adjourned at 6:26
p.m.







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
November 24, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building 
 
Present:   
Ron Christianson, Tim Swadley, Greg Jenson, Pat O’Connor, and Mayor Donna Olson 
 
Others Present:   
Finance Director Sullivan, City Attorney Dregne, Bud Erickson, Tom Selsor, Paul 
Lawrence 
 
Absent and Excused:   
None  
 
Call to order:    
Finance Chair Christianson called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Communications:   
None 
 
Reports:  Contingency / October Treasurer’s Report  
No action taken 
 
Finance Committee Minutes of November 24, 2015: 
Motion by Jenson, to approve the minutes of November 24, 2015 second by Swadley. 
Motion carried unanimously 5-0. 
 
Proposal to Provide Economic Development Services 
Mayor Olson and Finance Director Sullivan presented a proposal to provide economic 
development services for the City. They suggested using the firm Vierbicher to fulfill this 
proposal for $38,000 annually. Finance Director Sullivan noted that Gary Becker, with 
Vierbicher, has been very involved with getting the City grants, allowing the City to offer 
revolving loans for businesses and also helped the City to establish the Redevelopment 
Authority. Mayor Olson explained that this would be a contracted service and the City 
doesn’t need to follow a request for proposal process. 
 
Motion by Swadley, to approve the proposal contingent upon the City attorney review, 
second by Jenson. Motion carried unanimously 5-0. 
 
Stoughton Area Veterans Memorial Park Funding Request 
Christianson noted that this item is before the committee per the request of Council 
President Lawrence. Bud Erickson presented to the committee the plans for the park 
and explained where the committee might need some financial help. Lawrence stated 
that he would like to donate approximately $16,000 from the contingency fund to help 
fund this project. Committee discussion encompassed using City funds and what funds 
to use.  
 
Motion by Olson, to approve the request to donate funds to the Stoughton Area 
Veterans Memorial Park, second by Jenson. Motion carried 4-0 with Christianson 
abstaining. 
 







Discussion regarding TIF Policy 
Attorney Dregne noted that he had reviewed the policy and prepared an outline of the 
main elements that would need to be addressed in the policy. Committee discussion 
continued regarding the possible changes to the TIF policy. Finance Director Sullivan 
noted that she, along with the City Attorney, had enough information to draft a new TIF 
policy and to bring it back to the Finance Committee for review.  
 
Future Agenda Items:  
 


- Bat Mitigation (Spring 2016) 
- Retiree Reserve Fund 


 
Adjournment 
Motion by O’Connor, to adjourn the meeting of the Finance Committee, second by 
Jenson. Motion carried unanimously 5-0. The meeting of the Finance Committee 
adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, October 14, 2015 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Steve Sletten, Peter Sveum, Brian Kahl, Ron Christianson and Finance Director 
Laurie Sullivan  
 


Absent: 
John Kramper, Tom Selsor and Dan Kittleson 
 
Others Present: 
Mayor Donna Olson, Gary Becker and Ryon Savasta 
 
Call to order:  
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Approval of August 12, 2015 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Sletten, to approve the minutes of the August 12, 
2015 RDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Communications: 
None 
 
Marathon Site update: 
Ryon Savasta reported that he is keeping the Marathon property front and 
center.  He has been making cold calls with local landowners and developers 
and will be sending out a mass mailing to the smaller surrounding communities 
to try and generate interest.  Savasta let the group know that there are 10 acres 
for sale in the Business Park that he is waiting for a final offer to be received. 
 
Elect Committee Vice Chair: 
Nominations were opened up for Committee Vice Chair.  Kahl nominated Kittleson to 
serve as Committee Vice Chair.  No other nominations were made.  Kittleson was 
unanimously elected Committee Vice Chair. 
 
Discuss any Redevelopment Area Number One developments: 
Sveum reported he touched based with Steve Mar-Pohl and Mar-Pohl had 
nothing new to report.   
 
Millfab Update – Closed Session: 
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Kahl, to close the meeting per State 
Statute 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 
properties; the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session; 
and then reopen for the regular course of business.  Time closed: 5:52 p.m. 
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Sletten, to reopen the meeting for the 
regular course of business at 6:23 p.m. 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2015 
Page 2 
 


 
Revolving Loan Fund Update: 
Sveum reported there is one application in the early stages of review.  Sveum 
will touch base with a new business in the downtown area to be sure they are 
aware of the program. 
 
 Future Agenda Items: 
 Marathon Site and Revolving Loan Fund update 
 MillFab Update 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Kahl, seconded by Christianson, to adjourn at 6:25 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







Business Park North Committee Minutes
Tuesday, November 24, 2015– 5:30 p.m.
Council Chambers, Second Floor, Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton WI.


Business Park North Members Present: Paul Lawrence, Chair; Greg Jenson, Vice-Chair;
Laurie Sullivan; David Wendt; Marilyn Housner and Rodney Scheel
Absent and Excused: Kate Schieldt
Staff Present: None
Press: None
Guests: Ronald Grosso


1. Call to Order. Lawrence called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.


2. Request by Ronald Grosso to purchase 300 Business Park Circle, Lot 14, Business
Park North to build 7 duplex style incubator buildings for up to 14 small or startup
companies.
Mr. Grosso gave an overview of his proposed project. Scheel reported there are additional
approvals necessary for the buildings & use through the Planning Commission & Common
Council. It was stressed that all uses within each unit will need to comply with the allowed
uses of the zoning district.


Motion by Sullivan to recommend the Finance Committee sell lot 14 to Ronald Grosso for
the full land price of $23,500/acre, 2nd by Lawrence. Motion carried unanimously.


3. Adjournment. Motion by Jenson to adjourn, 2nd by Scheel. Motion carried unanimously.


Respectfully Submitted,


Rodney Scheel







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\1-12-2016\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 11-9-15.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, November 9, 2015 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice Chair; Matt Hanna;
Todd Krcma; Michael Maloney; Pat O’Connor and Scott Truehl
Absent: None
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey
Press: None
Guests: Sonny Swangstu; Tom Vavra; Todd Nelson; Peter Sveum; Julie Hamer; Cheryl Lennon;
Jerimiah Macintire; Valerie Macintire; Tarnam Dhillon


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Introduction of new Commissioner Michael Maloney.
Mayor Olson introduced Michael Maloney as the new citizen Planning Commissioner.


3. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of September 14,
2015. Motion by Hanna to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion
carried 7 - 0.


4. Council Representative Report.
Christianson stated there is nothing to report.


5. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of development in the City and stated an urban service area
amendment process is likely to occur for the area west of Kettle Park West and for an area
south of State Highway 138.


Krcma questioned the status of the Water’s Edge project. Scheel stated there may be a
change in plans for the site but we have not received any information yet.


O’Connor questioned what an urban service area amendment is? Scheel stated an urban
service area amendment is necessary for areas that are most suitable for urban development
and capable of being provided with a full range of urban services including public water and
sanitary sewerage systems. The City will work through the urban service area amendment
process through the Capital Area Regional Planning Commission.


6. Terry Pippenger requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval for a land division
(CSM) at 3173 Duncan Road, Town of Dunn to consolidate 2 parcels.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the land division (CSM)
contingent on Town and County approval, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 7 - 0.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
11/9/15
Page 2 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\1-12-2016\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 11-9-15.doc


7. Jeff Moyer and Robert Wrase request extra-territorial jurisdictional approval for a
land division (CSM) at 1071 and 1079 Starr School Road, Town of Rutland.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the land division (CSM)
contingent on Town and County approval, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 7 - 0.


8. Sonny Swangstu, representing the American Legion Post #59 requests site plan
approval for an accessory building addition at 803 N. Page Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Christianson to approve the site plan for the building addition contingent on the
staff review letter of October 9, 2015, 2nd by O’Connor. Motion carried 7 - 0.


9. Steve Hansen, representing the Stoughton Area School District requests to install
dugouts at Yahara School ball diamond, 900 W. Wilson Street and at Stoughton High
School ball diamond, 600 Lincoln Avenue.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Hanna to approve the request as presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 7 - 0.


10. Calvin Merath, Stoughton Area School District requests to install as shed at Fox
Prairie School football field, 1601 W. South Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Hanna questioned what materials would be used for the shed. Scheel thought a Rubbermaid
plastic type material would be used since they described the intent to remove and reinstall on
a seasonal basis.


Christianson questioned if the shed complied with the temporary structure requirements.
Scheel stated this is a permanent type structure that will be used seasonally and could be
moved off site and brought back next football season.


Motion by Truehl to approve the request as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 6 – 1
(Christianson voted no)


11. The City of Stoughton requests to rezone the parcels bounded by Fourth and Seventh
Streets and South Street and the Yahara River to MR-24 – Multi-Family Residential.
Scheel explained the request.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


Peter Sveum, representing the Redevelopment Authority spoke in favor of the rezoning.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
11/9/15
Page 3 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\1-12-2016\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 11-9-15.doc


Krcma questioned restrictions for existing single family homes. Scheel stated the single
family homes will not be restricted rather they will be held to the SR-5 single family
residential district bulk regulations.


O’Connor questioned the impact for the Milfab property. Scheel stated any existing use at
the time of rezoning can continue.


Christianson stated this is just another step in the process to redevelop that area and
revitalize the river front.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request as
presented, 2nd by Christianson. Motion carried 7 - 0.


12. The City of Stoughton requests to rezone the properties north and east of 1588
Williams Drive from RH – Rural Holding to PI – Planned Industrial.
Scheel explained the request.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Christianson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request
as presented, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 7 - 0.


13. Tom Vavra, representing Dhillon Petroleum LLC requests to rezone the properties at
1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street from PB – Planned Business to PD –
Planned Development (General Development Plan) to accommodate a retail building
reconstruction including a drive-thru.
Tom Vavra stated the plan is to construct a new convenience store with a Dunkin Donuts.
He stated the undesignated retail space on the eastern portion of the building may
accommodate a liquor store.


Scheel gave a brief explanation of the request.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


Tom Vavra spoke in favor of the request.


Jerimiah Macintire spoke against the request with concern about traffic, hours of operation
and potential lighting issues.


Valerie Macintire spoke against the request with concern about the Gjertson/Main
intersection, with specific concerns for pedestrians crossing at this location.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
11/9/15
Page 4 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\1-12-2016\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 11-9-15.doc


Corey Potter spoke against the request with concerns about the amount of exceptions and
loss of visibility to his signage and site. He provided a written letter of concerns.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Scheel gave an overview of the original concept plan and the proposed site plan. Scheel
went through the list of deviations.


The Commissioners had the following concerns with the proposed site plan:
 The exit to Gjertson Street from the drive through is not safe;
 Too much building for the size of the property;
 Screening of the property from the property to the south may be necessary to cut


down lights from vehicles;
 Snow removal may be an issue with the narrow drive through;
 How will stormwater management be handled onsite;
 The 10-foot drive through lane is too narrow for maneuvering;
 No good access to drive through from gas pumps;
 Dumpsters are not screened from view to the south;
 Building is too close to the south and west lot lines;
 Some retail space should be eliminated to reduce the size of the building;
 Fencing could be installed to screen the property to the south.
 Not enough parking spaces.


Motion by Truehl to Table the request to allow the applicant to modify the site plan and
work with the neighbor’s to seek a compromise to address concerns raised, 2nd by Krcma.


Tom Vavra stated:
 A narrow drive is typical of these types of sites to encourage slow traffic;
 A catch basin is planned with in-ground storage for stormwater management;
 Could consider a left turn only onto Gjertson from the drive through.


Motion carried 7 - 0.


14. Todd Nelson requests to rezone the properties at 400 and 324 S. Van Buren Street from
PB – Planned Business to PD – Planned Development (General Development Plan) to
accommodate a 14-unit apartment building.
Todd Nelson gave an overview of the request.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


Jerimiah Macintire spoke with concern about lighting, elevation of the building and no
information provided by the developer as he had indicated he would.
Valerie Macintire spoke with concern about increased traffic and potential tenant turnover in
apartment vs single family homes.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
11/9/15
Page 5 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2016 PACKETS\1-12-2016\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 11-9-15.doc


Cheryl Lennon spoke against with concern about traffic, street parking and questions about
water service.


Julie Hamer spoke with concern about safety, traffic and size of building.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Krcma stated compared to the existing zoning classification of Planned Business, this
proposal for multi-family is better for the neighborhood.


Maloney questioned the parking and dumpster details. Scheel stated the site meets the
parking requirement and other minor details such as the dumpster enclosure can be worked
out at the specific implementation plan stage.


Hanna stated the zoning is a good direction for the site and recommended possibly removing
the upper balconies to the west to address the residential neighbor’s concerns and north due
to the tyme machine being so close.


Todd Nelson explained how the retaining wall is planned to be installed and clarified tenants
will not be age specific.


Motion by Krcma to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning to Planned
Development General Development Plan and seek input from the Public Safety Committee
regarding additional traffic for the area contingent on the staff review letter dated November
2, 2015, 2nd by Maloney. The GDP supports the proposed 14 units, reduced setbacks and
reduced landscaped surface ratio. Motion carried 7 - 0.


15. Jason Brabender requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval for a land division
(CSM) at 1905 Barber Drive, Town of Dunn to consolidate 2 parcels.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM contingent on
Town and County approval, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 7 - 0.


16. Future agenda items
Urban Service Area Amendments for the Kettle Park West area; Comprehensive Plan
Amendment for 2016; BP/Dunkin Donuts and Todd Nelson Apartment.


17. Adjournment.
Motion by O’Connor to adjourn at 8:00 pm, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 7 – 0.


Respectfully submitted, Michael P. Stacey







Public Works Committee
Tuesday, November 17, 2015 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room @ City Hall – 381 E Main St


Members Present: Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Tom Selsor and
Mayor Olson


Absent & Excused: None


Staff: Street Superintendent Karl Manthe and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Dave Taylor – MMSD, Residents – JoAnn Lien, Joann Holtan and David Flesch


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm


1) Communications: Boersma stated that there had been a second work day at the
Crabapple Arboretum where a few trees had been removed and multiple trees re-mulched to
prepare for winter with multiple people from Sustainable Stoughton volunteering. Manthe
stated: that the Christmas decorations were put up downtown, the City was awarded a Local
Road Improvement Program (LRIP) grant for $37,000 and that the ash trees will be re-
evaluated due to a new disease called Ash Yellow. Lawrence stated that he had received a
complaint from the northwest side of the city concerning leaf pick up.


2) Activity Reports: Reports include the following information;


Washington Street and Fifth Street Reconstruction Project is completed expect for some minor
punchlist items. Now that the construction project is completed, street crews delivered 63
trees to be planted on Fifth & Washington Streets. Private landscape contractor has planted
the trees for city.


The South Alley Project is also completed except for some minor punchlist items, one which is
connecting the downspouts into the new stormwater system that will assist with water/ice in
the alley.


Fall is here and we have many projects to get completed before the snow starts flying. Crews
have started leaf collection and will be out until November 25th. Street and Parks Departments
crews were busy the last month performing the following tasks;


 October brush collection was very heavy as it took crews 7 working days to complete entire
city. Crews hauled 119 truckloads of brush to yardwaste site to be mulched at a later time.
One last brush collection is scheduled for November.


 Crews performed safety pruning, trimmed branches hanging over streets, sidewalks and
blocking signs throughout the city.


 Crews were out with cold patch patching streets throughout the city.
 Yard waste site has been steady this month. For the year, 953 (23 new permits for October


– last year 924 for entire year) permits have been sold to city residents and 146 (4 new
permits for October) permits issued to Dunkirk Township resident. We have a new all time
record for permits sold in a season with 953 and still counting. The old record was 934.
Street crews haul yard waste to organic farmer and also to city site to make own compost
material for future projects.


 Sediment was removed from Eastwood Retention pond by contractor who uses vacuum
system to remove sediment. Street crews assisted with digging hole for sediment, and then
once project was completed, took care of restoration.


 Street sweepers continue Friday morning sweeping in the downtown district and will
complement leaf machines during November.


 Stormwater inlets were cleaned after large rainfall events.







 Street crews have all Christmas light decorations ready to be attached to evergreen
garland.


 American and Norwegian flags have been taken down for the season.


 Street staff put metal cemetery location markers in the ground at Wheeler Prairie.
 Crews painted school crosswalks on Fifth Street and Washington Street. Public Works &


Public Safety Committees are still reviewing pedestrian safety throughout the city. Street
Department has placed out a couple “In-Street Pedestrian Signs” on Main Street.


 Administrative Assistant is busy keeping inventories current for cemetery, trees and signs,
processing invoices, tracking yardwaste permits, sales, and usage, computerizing
employee timesheets, and addressing customer inquiries.


 Fleet Maintenance Manager continues to maintain city wide fleet to make sure it is available
for daily tasks. Fleet Manager has fall leaf equipment ready for the season. Fleet Manager
will start focusing on getting winter snow & ice removal equipment ready and completing
yearly Fire Truck maintenance.


 The Parks Department continues to keep very busy with daily park cleanup, athletic field
prep (soccer & football), mulching leaves, closing up and winterizing shelters. Weed
assessments were completed at Schefelker, East, Dunkirk, Rotary, Lowell, and Veterans
Parks.


 Other routine tasks completed during the month include; dumping trash barrels downtown
and cemeteries, cleaning fleet and garage, check traffic signals, monitor water levels at
Fourth Street Dam, garage safety inspections (fire extinguishers, eye wash stations, exit
lights, fall protection).


Old Business:


3) Veterans Park Tennis Court Project Update – Pickleball Information: JoAnn Lien stated
that the City could use some more Pickleball courts as currently there is only two @ Eastside
Park. There are 32 people involved in the league currently and only eight (8) people can play
at a time – four (4) on each court. JoAnn stated that Pickleball is the fastest growing sport at
this time. It is played with paddles slightly large that a ping pong paddle (15 ½ in), nets, a ball
with holes in it and the courts need back stops at each end. At Veterans Park the tennis court
is larger enough for four (4) Pickleball courts.


Parks and Recreation Director, Tom Lynch, provided a memo stating he would recommend
that the court remain as a tennis court with lines added for Pickleball.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Boersma to direct staff to provide an analysis on
costs and options of keeping as a tennis court (including fencing) in combination with
Pickleball courts or converting the tennis court to four Pickleball courts. Motion
carried 5-0 (with Mayor voting yes)


Boersma left meeting at 6:30 pm


4) Discussion on Pedestrian Safety in Downtown District – Public Safety Committee
Request: The Public Safety Committee sent a request for the Public Works Committee to
approve the purchase of two (2) more pedestrian crossing signs. Manthe stated that the
Street Department does have the funds to purchase two (2) more signs at the cost of
approximately $300.00 each. These signs would be placed at S Monroe St / Main St and King
St / Main St. Mayor Olson suggested that staff also pursue a grant for a lighted sign.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Boersma to direct staff to purchase two (2) portable
in street crosswalk signs. Motion carried 4-0 (with Mayor voting yes).







New Business:


5) Approve October 20, 2015 Meeting Minutes: Motion by Lawrence seconded by Selsor
to approve minutes. Motion carried 4-0. (Mayor voting yes)


6) Plans for Removing Soil Materials and Creating Parking Space @ Riverside Dr (behind
cemetery): Manthe stated that the Street Department would like to start the process of
converting this area by hauling away the soil during the winter. In the spring, the Street
Department will develop a grassy area for a trash barrel and picnic table and up to six parking
spaces. To make sure the grass area can grow grass; black dirt would be hauled in and
seeded. Parking lot will be constructed with pulverized asphalt materials at first. The
committee also had concerns about the stability of the hillside or if there is any necessary work
to be done.


Motion by Lawrence seconded by Majewski to direct staff to proceed with the concept
of plan by providing the committee with more details about the materials to be used,
design of the parking lot and a review of the stability of the hillside. Motion carried 4-0
(with Mayor voting yes).


7) Designation of Street Department Employees as Emergency Personnel: Manthe
explained that the League of Wisconsin Municipalities recommends that Street Department
Employees be designated as “emergency personnel” in order to comply with Wisconsin
Statute 66.0502 that states that only emergency personnel can be required to live within a 15
mile radius. Currently Street Department employees are required to reside within 20 miles of
the City of Stoughton.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Selsor to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the designation of the Street Department Employees as Emergency Personnel.
Motion carried 4-0 (with Mayor voting yes)


8) City Participation in Adaptive Management Program – Presentation by Dave Taylor of
MMSD (Madison Metropolitan Sewerage District): Mr. Taylor from the MMSD gave a
presentation on the study which involved the City of Stoughton and other surrounding
communities from 2012 thru 2015 on suspended solids and phosphorus reduction. The City of
Stoughton is required to reduce TSS & TP for each watershed in which we discharge
stormwater. In January of 2016 the City will be asked to enter into an Intergovernmental
Agreement to proceed in the Adaptive Management Program which will begin in 2017.


9) 2016 Clyde Street Project – Sidewalk: Scheel presented a strategy for installing sidewalks
for each of the four (4) blocks of Clyde Street from N Van Buren St to N Madison St. and is
also seeking direction on which option to pursue. Scheel explained the issues surrounding this
project with regards for strict adherence to the city policy on sidewalks and provided
recommendations for each block along with cost estimates. If sidewalks were installed on
both sides of the street there would be only a two (2) foot terrace which could create issues
with snow as there would be no where to put the snow. Multiple properties would need
retaining walls if sidewalks were installed on both sides. If the second option was pursued only
one property involved will need a retaining wall. The north side of the street has most of the
sidewalk installed. The south side of the street has sidewalk in the first block near Van Buren
St.


The primary recommendation will be at a cost of $164,500 which follows the city policy on
sidewalks and a secondary recommendation will be at a cost of $ 54,010. The secondary
recommendation involves only installing corner ramps on the south side of the street to link
pedestrians to the north side where all blocks will have a sidewalk.







Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Selsor to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the second sidewalk option at a cost of $ 54,010 as outlined in the memo dated
October 28, 2015 for the 2016 Clyde Street Project. Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor
voting yes)


10) Future Agenda Items: Pickleball, Parkrow Tree Planting


Moved by Lawrence, seconded by Selsor to adjourn the meeting at 7:32 pm. Motion
carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting). Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative
Assistant – 11/18/15





		2-Public Safety Minutes 11-19-2015.pdf

		3 November 24, 2015 Finance Minutes.pdf

		10-14-15 RDA Minutes.pdf

		BPN  11-24-15.pdf

		Planning Minutes 11-9-15.pdf

		PW Min November 17, 2015.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request, Certified Survey Map 


(CSM) by Matt Hamacher for property located 3279 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommend Council approval 6 - 0 with the Mayor voting  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-5-2016 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 12, 2016 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on December 14, 2015 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed and recommend 


the Common Council approve the proposed ETJ Land Division (CSM) request by Matt Hamacher for 


property located 3279 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the certified survey map request is proposed to split a parcel into 2 parcels to accommodate an 


existing residential home on one parcel and future construction of a building for the applicant’s business on 


the other parcel; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 


determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s 


Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is identified on the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map as 


Southwest Planned Neighborhood (though on the western edge of the SPN); now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 


division (CSM) request by Matt Hamacher for property located 3279 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland, 


Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County approval. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


  


  


 


   


 


 


  


  


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\3279 Hwy 138 ETJ CSM.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\12-14-15\Planning Info\ETJ Hamacher Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 4, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the December 14, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting and
Common Council meeting of January 12, 2016.


1. Matt Hamacher requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to split the property at
3279 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
This extra-territorial zoning request is to allow Owner-Applicant Matt Hamacher to split the
property leaving the home on one parcel while a new building for the other parcel is planned to
house a business. Land divisions with the City’s 1.5 mile ETJ area require Planning
Commission review and Common Council approval. The resolution, CSM and related
materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary. Staff recommends
approval contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County approval.







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 12-14-15.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, December 14, 2015 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice Chair; Matt Hanna;
Todd Krcma; Michael Maloney; and Pat O’Connor
Absent: Scott Truehl
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey
Press: None
Guests: Tom Vavra; Tarnam Dhillon; Dennis Steinkraus; Corey Potter


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of November 9, 2015.
Motion by Christianson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by O’Connor. Motion
carried 6 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson reported ordinance 18 and 19 were unanimously approved.


4. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments. There were no questions.


5. Matt Hamacher requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to split the property
at 3279 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
Scheel explained the request. O’Connor questioned the commercial use. Scheel stated it
was for a lawn care business.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional request contingent on the Town of Rutland and Dane County approval, 2nd by
Krcma. Motion carried 6 – 0.


6. James Steindl requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to combine 2 parcels at
981 Collins Road, Town of Dunkirk.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional request contingent on the Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval, 2nd by
Christianson. Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Tom Vavra, representing Dhillon Petroleum LLC requests to rezone the properties at
1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street from PB – Planned Business to PD –
Planned Development (General Development Plan) to accommodate a retail building
reconstruction including a drive-thru. Tabled on November 9, 2015.
Scheel introduced the request.



mstacey

Highlight











Lot 1 (to RH-2)


Part of the NW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 12, T.5N., R.10E., Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin,


described as follows:


Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of Section 12; thence N87°08'44"E along the North line of the NE


1/4, 66 feet to the point of beginning; thence continue N87°08'44"E along said line, 265 feet to the


Northwest corner of Lot 1 Dane County Certified Survey Map number 2983; thence S05°49'06"E along


the West line of said Lot 1, 691 feet; thence S84°11'W, 265 feet; thence N05°49'06"W, 705 feet the


point of beginning. Containing 4.2 acres more or less.


Lot 2 (to C-1)


Part of the NW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 12, T.5N., R.10E., Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin,


described as follows:


Beginning at the North 1/4 corner of Section 12; thence N87°08'44"E along the North line of the NE 1/4,


66 feet; thence S05°49'E, 705 feet; thence N84°11'E, 265 feet to the West line of Dane County Certified


Survey Map number 2983; thence S05°49'E, 636 feet to the Southwest corner of said survey; thence


S86°48'44"W, 330.96 feet; thence N05°49'06"W along the West line of the 1/4 - 1/4, 1328.81 feet to the


point of beginning. Containing 5.6 acres more or less.











Map data ©2015 Google 1000 ft


3279 WI-138


Page 1 of 23279 WI-138 - Google Maps


12/1/2015https://www.google.com/maps/place/3279+WI-138,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.916371,-89.2683671,15z/data=!4m2!3m1!1s0x88064...





		12-R-5-2016-3279 Hwy 138 ETJ CSM- Hamacher.pdf

		Hamacher ETJ CSM Request.pdf






 
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated job description and 


compensation rate increase to $39.42 for the Utilities Electric System Supervisor position. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Personnel Committee recommends approval 5-0 


  


 
File Number: 


 
R-6-2016 


 
Date Introduced:   January 12, 2016 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee received a request to approve the updated job description and 


compensation rate increase to $39.42 for the Utilities Electric System Supervisor position and, 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on Monday, December 14, 2015 to review the updated job 


description and compensation rate increase to $39.42 for the Utilities Electric System Supervisor position 


and, 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval unanimously (5-0) of the updated job 


description and compensation rate increase to $39.42 for the Utilities Electric System Supervisor position, 


now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the updated job description and compensation rate increase to 


$39.42 for the Utilities Electric System Supervisor position. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 


 













































		13-R-6-2016-Resolution Personnel  Utilities Electric System Supervisor Position Updated Job Description and Compensation Rate.pdf

		Utilities Job Description- Electric System Supervisor.pdf






 
 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the rate of compensation to $24.42 for 


the position of Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Personnel Committee recommends approval 5-0 


  


 
File Number: 


 
R-7-2016 


 
Date Introduced:   January 12, 2016 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee received a request to approve the rate of compensation to $24.42 


for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist and, 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on Monday, December 14, 2015 to review the financial 


impact of this change and determined there is no financial impact and, 


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval unanimously (5-0) to approve the rate of 


compensation to $24.42 for the position of Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to approve the rate of compensation to $24.42 for the position of Utilities 


Billing and Metering Specialist.   


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 


 





		14-R-7-2016-Resolution Personnel Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist Rate of Compensation Change.pdf

		Utilities Job Description #6.pdf






 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, December 8, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building  


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg 


Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim 


Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:01 p.m. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that ten alderpersons were present, with Boersma and Majewski 


being absent and excused. 


 


Swangstu addressed the Council and gave Police Chief Leck a donation on behalf of the Stoughton 


American Legion for Ole, the police dog. 


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record: 


 


Minutes: Commission on Aging (11/3/2015), Public Safety Committee (10/28/2015) and Finance 


Committee (11/10/2015) 


 


Public Comment Period:   


 


Sherry Johnson; 924 South Page Street; Spoke in favor of her Operator License Application being 


approved. 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


 


-Council Minutes: November 24, 2015 


-R-180-2015- Appointing Election Inspectors in the City of Stoughton for the 2016-2017 term 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve the consent agenda, second by Jenson. Motion carried unanimously by 


acclamation 10-0.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


   


 







 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O-18-2015- An ordinance amending the zoning classification for properties owned by Steven 


Metzler and located at 400 S Van Buren Street and 324 S Van Buren Street from PB- Planned 


Business to PD- Planned Development (General Development Plan)  


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve O-18-2015, second by Truehl. Christianson noted that this 


would allow for the building of a new 14 unit apartment building on the vacant lot on Van Buren 


Street, by the current Wells Fargo Bank. Council discussion included the zoning setbacks and if 


the location is appropriate for this type of construction. Motion carried on a roll call vote 9-1, 


with Jenson voting noe.   


 


 


O-19-2015- An ordinance amending the zoning classification for properties owned by the City of 


Stoughton and located north and west of 1588 Williams Drive from RH- Rural Holding to PI- 


Planned Industrial  


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve O-18-2015, second by Truehl. No discussion occurred. 


Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0. 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-179-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to issue an Operator License to 


Sherry Johnson.  


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-179-2015, second by Swadley. Council discussion 


encouraged allowing of the Operator License to be issued to the applicant. Motion carried 9-1, 


with Engelberger voting noe. 


 


R-183-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into a one year contract 


with Vierbicher Associates, Inc to provide Economic Development Services. 


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-183-2015, second by Lawrence.  Gary Becker, from 


Vierbicher Associates, addressed the Council regarding the proposed contract to provide 


Economic Development Services. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0. 


  


R-184-2015-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to contribute a one-time 


donation of $16,000 to the Stoughton Area Veterans Memorial Park to purchase a  memorial 


pillar using 2015 contingency funds. 


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-184-2015, second by Lawrence. Christianson stated that 


this would be a one-time donation that would purchase a memorial pillar to be placed in the 


Stoughton Veterans Memorial Park. Council discussion included what might be placed on the 


pillar and if the use of the contingency fund was appropriate for this donation. Motion carried on 


a roll call vote 9-0, with Christianson abstaining. 







 


 


Swadley requested that at a future Council or Committee of the Whole meeting that there be a 


discussion about the budgeting process, specifically to discuss the City contingency fund.  


 


O-20-2015- Amending Section 2-688 of the Code of Ordinances relating to Electronic 


Preservation of Records.  


 


Jenson offered O-20-2015 to the Council as a first reading and noted that it would be brought 


before the council for a vote at the first meeting in January 2016.     


     


 


R-181-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the designation of 


the Stoughton Utilities Field Crew Employees as emergency personnel. 


 


Motion by Swangstu, to approve R-181-2015, second by Jenson.  Utilities Kardasz explained 


that this came about so that the Utilities Field Crew can be treated as Emergency Personnel in 


case of utility related emergencies. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0. 


 


R-182-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the modification of 


Stoughton Utilities employee response time from 15 minutes to 30 minutes.  


 


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-182-2015, second by Lawrence. Utilities Director Kardasz 


explained that this change would adhere to guidelines from other location Utility departments as well. 


He indicated that this is not necessarily a residency requirement, but more so a requirement for on-call 


employee’s response time. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0. 


 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding the cancellation of the December 22, 2015 


Common Council meeting. 


 


Motion by Christianson, to cancel the December 22, 2015 meeting of the Common Council, 


second by Lawrence. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Jenson. Motion 


carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0. The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 


8:03 p.m.  


 








NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 


 
 The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, 


will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, January 12, 2016 at 7:00 o’clock p.m., 


or as soon hereafter as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public 


Safety Building, 2nd Floor, 321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, to 


consider special assessments for installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water 


and street improvements on Hults Road and Jackson Street, within the City of 


Stoughton and levying of special assessments to pay for same. The special 


assessments relate to the following parcels: 


 


Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8150-2 


Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8412-2 


Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8436-2 


Parcel No. 281/0510-014-8451-2 


Parcel No. 281-0510-014-8473-2 


 


A complete engineer’s report may be viewed at Stoughton City Hall, Monday 


through Friday 7:30 am to 4:30 pm. 


 


      Lana Kropf, City Clerk 


 


Published: December 24, 2015 


 


 


Please Note: 
 


If you have any questions regarding this notice  
and/or special assessments, please contact  


Director of Planning & Development Rodney Scheel at 873-6619 
 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Amending Section 2-688 of the Code of Ordinances relating to Electronic Preservation of Records


Committee Action: Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee recommends approval 5-0


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: O -20-2015 Date
Introduced:


December 8, 2015


January 12, 2016


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


1. Section 2-688 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended to provide as
follows:


Sec. 2-688 Preservation through microfilm or other electronic means.


Any custodian of records may keep and preserve public records by means of microfilm or
another reproductive device, optical imaging or electronic formatting. Such records shall
meet the standards for reproduction set forth in Wis. Stats. §§ 16.61(7) and 16.612, and
shall be considered original records for all purposes. Such records shall be retained in
accordance with applicable record retention requirements, and shall be open to public
inspection and copying in accordance with state law and sections 2-684 through 2-686.


2. This ordinance shall be effective upon passage and posting as provided by law.


Dates
Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk







#e Statford Rosen ba u m r-r-p


Å:11*:rt*tyL:


Memotandum


Re


To Lana Kropf, City Clerk, City of Stoughton


From Matthew P.


Date November 2,2015


Ordinance Regarding Electronic Preservation of Public Records


Stafford Rosenbaum LLP File Retention and Destruction Policies


INrnonuCTION


We have prepared the enclosed ordinance authorizing the electronic preservation of
public records. Stafford Rosenbaum is transitioning to a paperless office. We request


that the City Common Council adopt the enclosed ordinance so that we may preserve any


public records in our possession in electronic format. The enclosed ordinance makes


certain changes to the City's ordinances to simplifi electronic retention, and conform to


State law. The ordinance will also authorize the Cþ of Stoughton to maintain public


records in electronic format. Please note that we are not charging you for any of our


work on this project.


We also write to inform you of Stafford Rosenbaum LLP's policies regarding file
retention and destruction. At the conclusion of each matter, we will retain the hle in
electronic format in accordance with the retention schedule described below. Files will
be destroyed at the conclusion of the applicable retention period without additional notice


to the City. Please contact us at any time before the retention period expires if you would
like us to provide the file to you before it is destroyed.


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\ì4EMOS\389075 I.DOCX
ll02tsl428







DrscussroN


1. Staffird Rosenbaum File Retention and Destruction Periods


'We have adopted a retention schedule for closed municipal files. Retention periods are


based upon the type of matter. For example, "general municipal" files have a 7 year


retention period, and "land use" files have a 30 year retention period. The retention


schedule is as follows:


Municipal Law Matter Type File Retention Period (Years)


7Municipal General


20Municipal Contracts


Municipal Land Use 30


30Municipal Eminent Domain


Municipal Prosecution 7


7Municipal Employment
10Municipal Labor
7Municipal Property Tax


7Municipal Litigation
Municipal Utility 7


7Municipal Environmental
Determined on a Case-by-Case Basis


(7 minimum)
Municipal Superfund Sites


2. Electronic Retention of Public Records.


Wis. Stat. $ 19.21(4)(c) authorizes municipalities to preserve public records in an


electronic format.r The municipality must pass an ordinance or resolution authorizing the


electronic retention of public records. The electronic record must meet the standards in


Wis. Stat. $$ 16.61(7) and 16.612 to be considered an original record. A discussion of
these standards follows.


I "Electronic fomat" includes information created, generated, sent, communicated or stored in electrical,


digital, magnetic, optical, electromagnetic or similar technological form. Wis. Admin. Code $ Adm


12.04(6).


fifr?r.lo!3ruunr000004weMos\38e075l.Docx 2







2


a
J


4


5


WunN IS AN ELECTRONIC RECORD DEEMED AN ORIGINAL NNCONO?


Any microfilm reproduction of an original record, or a copy generated from an original
record stored in optical disk or electronic format, is an original public record if all of the
following conditions are met:


1. The record accurately reproduces the original's content.


The record complies with the minimum standards of quality under Wis. Admin.
Code $ Adm 12.05. 'We address this funher below.


The f,rlm is processed and developed under the minimum standards established in
Wis. Admin. Code $ Adm 12.05. We address this further below.


The record is arranged, identified and indexed so that any individual document or


component of the record can be located.


The custodian of the record executes a statement of intent and purpose describing
the record to be reproduced or transferred to optical disk or electronic format, the


disposition of the original record, the enabling ordinance or resolution for cities,


towns, or villages, and executes a certificate veriffing that the record was received


or created and microfilmed or transferred to optical disk or electronic format in the


normal course of business, and that the statement of intent and purpose is properly
recorded as directed by the board.


Wis. Stat. $ 16.61(7)(a)1-5. Please note that we have not been able to determine whether
it is necessary to comply with Wis. Stat. $ 16.61(7)(a)1-5 to satis$r record retention
requirements, or whether compliance is necessary only for records to be deemed


"original" records. This is an issue we are attempting to address with the Public Records


Board. Please note that we have also not been able to determine how to "properly
record" a "statement of intent and purpose," pursuant to the statute. We are also


attempting to address this issue with the Public Records Board.


Wis. Admin. Code $$ Adm 12.01-12.05 contain further rules developed by the


Department of Administration governing electronic record preservation. V/is. Stat.


$ 16.612. These rules direct municipalities to:


maintain electronic public records that are accessible, accvrate, authentic, reliable,
legible, and readable throughout the record life cycle.


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\N4EMOS\389075'l .DOCX


a


a
J


1102151428







document policies, assign responsibilities, and develop appropriate formal
mechanisms for creating and maintaining electronic public records throughout the
record life cycle.


maintain confidentiality or restricted access to records or records series maintained
in electronic format, limiting access to those persons authorized by law,
administrative rule, or established municipal policy.


utilize information systems that accurately reproduce the records they create and


maintain.


describe and document public records created by information systems.


document authorization for the creation and modification of electronic public
records and, where required, ensure that only authorized persons create or modiff
the records.


design and maintain new information systems so that these systems can provide an


official record copy for those business functions accomplished by the system.


develop and maintain information systems that maintain accurate linkages,


electronically or by other means, to transactions supporting the records created


where these linkages are essential to the meaning of the record.


utilize information systems that produce records that continue to reflect their
meaning throughout the record life cycle.


utilize information systems that can delete or purge electronic records created in
accordance with the approved retention schedule.


utilize information systems that can export records that require retention to other


systems without loss of meaning.


ufilize information systems that can output record content, structure and context


úilize information systems that allow records to be masked to exclude


confidential or exempt information.


Wis. Admin. Code $ Adm 12.05(1)-(13).


a


a


o


L:\DOCS\005649\000004\I4EMOS\389075 I.DOCX
1t021s1428


o


o


o


o


o


a


o


4







CoNcl,usloN


We hope that the enclosed ordinance and this memorandum are helpful to you. Please lef
us know if the enclosed ordinance is or is not adopted. Flease also let us know if you
have any questions or çoncerns regarding the matters discussed in this memorandurn.


Enclosure


L:\DOeS\O05649[000ût4\MËMOS\189075 Ì.DOc-X
1I02t 5.r 4?8 5







OnonraNcp No.


AN Onor¡qaNcp AtmNorNc SncrroN 2-688 or Tun CooB o¡ OnnTNANCES RBrRrrNc ro
ErpcrnoNrc PnnsBRvarIoN oF Recorus


The Common Councit of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsìn, ordains


as þllows:


1. Section 2-688 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended to provide


as follows:


Sec. 2-688 Preservation through microfilm or other electronic me


Any custodian of records ei


@ay keePand
preserve public records i@y means of microfilm or another


ve or


@. Such records shall meet the standards for photegraphie


reproduction set forth in Wis. Stats. $$ 16.61(7)(a) and 16.612(7þ), and shall be


considered original records for all purposes. Such records shall be retained in
accordance with applicable record retention requirements. @


+isien-and shall be open to public inspection and


copying in accordance with i@state law and ef,sections 2-684


through 2-686.


2. This ordinance shall be effective upon passage and posting as provided by law


Adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County,


Wisconsin at a regular meeting held on


APPROVED:


Mayor Donna Olson


ATTEST:


ADOPTED:


POSTED:


L:\DOCS\005649\0000O4\ORDINANCE\3 883345.DOCX
1102157417


Lanakopf, City Clerk







COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/COUNCIL POLICY MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, December 1, 2015, 5:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City of Stoughton, WI


Present: Alderpersons Greg Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Sonny Swangstu, Scott Truehl, and
Mayor Donna Olson


Guests: City Attorney Matt Dregne


Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Chairperson Jenson.


Communications: None.


Approve the Minutes from November 3, 2015: Engelberger requested that the minutes be
changed from saying “ Engelberger asked if there are state statutes that dictate the bylaws of the
Commission on aging” and replace it with "Engelberger asked that staff check the state statutes
regarding commissions to make sure the updated by-laws are in compliance with state
statutes."
Motion by Engelberger to approve the minutes of November 3, 2015, as amended, second by
Swangstu. Motion passed 4-0.


Alderperson Truehl joined the meeting at 5:10 p.m.


Discussion regarding Roberts Rules and its use within the Council Rules


The committee, along with City Attorney Dregne, discussed ways that the Council could clarify their
rules and eliminate/ reduce any language regarding Robert’s Rules of Order. Dregne suggested that
the Committee review and consider use of “The Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure” as it is
more suited towards government procedures and it uses clear and more concise language. He
noted that Robert’s Rule of Order’s language is too abstract and can lead to further debate over its
meaning. He also explained that the Council should amend and clarify its own rules to be used as
the basis of the Council procedures. Attorney Dregne then suggested that he would make a few
changes to the current Council rules to be discussed at the next meeting. He encouraged the
Committee to compare Roberts Rules of Order to the Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure for
discussion at the next meeting.


Discussion and possible action to amend Section 2-688 of the Stoughton Code of
Ordinances relating to Electronic Preservation of Records


Attorney Dregne explained to the committee that this change would comply with the state statute
regarding electronic record retention and would allow the City’s Law firm to retain their city records
electronically. Mayor Olson noted that the retention schedule for electronic forms do conform with
the retention schedule that the City currently follows for hard and electronic copies of documents.


Motion by Truehl, to approve the amendment to Section 2-688 of the Stoughton Code of
Ordinances relating to Electronic Preservation of Records, second by Engelberger. Motion carried 5-
0.


Future Agenda Items:


-Roberts Rules within the Council Rules


Adjournment Motion by Engelberger, to adjourn, second by Truehl. Motion carried 5-0. The
meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.





		O-20-2015- Electronic Record Retention.pdf

		7-Kropf Memo from Dregne re Electronic Preservation of Records (11-2-15).PDF

		7-DRAFT December 1, 2015 CA-CP Minutes.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION FOR PROPERTIES OWNED 


BY DHILLON PETROLEUM LLC AND LOCATED AT 1009 W. MAIN STREET AND 308 S. 


GJERTSON STREET FROM PB – PLANNED BUSINESS TO PD – PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 


(GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN) 


 


Committee Action:    Planning Commission recommend Council approval 6 – 0 with the Mayor voting  


Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base 


File Number: O -1- 2016 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 


January 12, 2016 


January 26, 2016 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Dhillon Petroleum LLC (Applicant/Owner) has requested the zoning classification of the 


properties located at 1009 W Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street, Stoughton, WI. be amended from 


PB – Planned Business to PD – Planned Development, subject to certain conditions being satisfied; and  


 


2. The properties are more fully described as: 


 


1009 W. Main Street: parcel number: 281/0511-071-0899-7; JULSETH'S, I. M. ADDITION 


 


308 S. Gjertson Street: Parcel number; 281/0511-071-0911-0; I M JULSETH ADD LOT 20, and 


 


3. The Planned Development District is intended to provide more incentives for 


redevelopment in areas of the community which are experiencing a lack of reinvestment, or which 


require flexible zoning treatment because of factors which are specific to the site. This district is 


designed to forward both aesthetic and economic objectives of the city by controlling the site design and 


the land use, appearance, density, or intensity of development within the district in a manner which is 


consistent with sound land use, urban design, and economic revitalization principles. The application of 


these standards will ensure long-term progress and broad participation toward these principles. Refer to 


section 78-914 for the procedures applicable to proposal review in this standard zoning district. The city 


intends to use the planned development district to provide a mechanism for review of traditional 


neighborhood developments per State Statute 66.1027.  


Development standards: Development standards are flexible within this zoning district. Refer to 


subsection 78-914(2) for the range of development standards potentially available in this zoning district; 


and  


 


4. The Planning Commission and Common Council find this zoning map amendment is 


consistent with the recommendations of the City Comprehensive Plan; and 


 


5. On November 9, 2015, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing 


regarding the application to amend the zoning classification of the properties located at 1009 W Main 


Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street, Stoughton to PD – Planned Development, which was preceded by the 


publication of a class 2 notice under ch. 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  The Planning Commission 


tabled this request at the November 9, 2015 meeting to allow the applicant to make revisions to the site 







plan according to the concerns addressed at the public hearing.  The Planning Commission reviewed a 


revised plan on December 14, 2014 and recommend the Common Council approve the proposed 


rezoning request with or without conditions; and  


 


ORDINANCE 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 


 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 


forth in full. 


 


2. Subject to certain conditions, amending the zoning classification of the property to PD – 


Planned Development is consistent with the spirit and intent of the City’s Zoning Code; 


has the potential for producing significant community benefits in terms of aesthetics, 


community character and allows appropriate use of the property. 


 


3. The General Development Plan is approved as set forth herein, pursuant to section 78-


914 of the City Zoning Code and Wis. Stats § 62.23(7)(d).  The General Development 


Plan shall hereinafter control the development of the Property. 


 


4. This ordinance does not constitute City approval of any plans or specifications for any 


public improvements including utility improvements, street improvements, and other 


public improvements.  Plans and specifications for all public improvements related to the 


development of these properties shall be approved by the City, separately from the 


approval of the General Development Plan, and in accordance with City’s ordinances and 


policies relating to the design, approval and construction of public improvements. 


 


5. No part of the property may be developed until a Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) has 


been submitted and approved by the City Planning Commission. 


 


6. The property shall be developed and used in full compliance with all standards and 


requirements in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned PB – Planned 


Business, except those standards and requirements that are expressly modified in this 


ordinance or that are expressly modified in an approved Specific Implementation Plan for 


the property.  Chapter 78 of the City Code, this ordinance and the approved Specific 


Implementation Plan will constitute the zoning regulations for the property, and may be 


enforced as any zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton.  A copy of the Specific 


Implementation Plan shall be maintained and kept on file by the City Clerk. 


 


7. The following requirements are approved as part of the General Development Plan: 


a) The comparable zoning classification used for this proposed development is PB – 


Planned Business.  This property shall comply with all other standards of this 


district except for the following (revised site plan dated 12-7-15):  


 The landscape surface ratio of 25% may be reduced to no less than 13.8% 


of the site. 


 The 40-foot west side yard setback may be reduced to no less than 19 feet. 


 The 20-foot south rear yard setback may be reduced to no less than 19 


feet. 







 The 20-foot east front yard setback may be reduced to no less than 15 feet. 


 Interior curbing used to protect exterior fixtures is allowed as per 


approved Specific Implementation Plan. 


 The parking requirement of 18 parking stalls may be reduced to not less 


than 10 parking stalls.  This requirement recognizes 10 permanent parking 


stalls plus allows 4 vehicles using gas pumps to meet the maximum 25% 


reduction allowed. 


 The 5-foot paved surface setback requirement can be reduced as per 


approved Specific Implementation Plan to approximately 3 feet on the 


west and south property lines. 


 The 10-foot paved surface setback requirement can be reduced per 


approved Specific Implementation Plan along the north and east property 


lines. 


 A certified survey map is required to be approved and recorded to 


combine the 2 parcels. 


b) The requirements of the City Staff review letter dated December 8, 2015 shall be 


addressed and reviewed as part of the Specific Implementation Plan. 
 


 


 


 


Dates 


Council Adopted:     


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Donna Olson, Mayor 


Published:     


 


Attest:               


        Lana Kropf, City Clerk 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\1009 W Main Street Rezone.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\12-14-15\Planning Info\1009 W. Main Street Rezoning Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 8, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the December 14, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting and
Common Council meetings of January 12 and January 26, 2016


1. Tom Vavra, representing Dhillon Petroleum LLC requests to rezone the properties at
1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street from PB – Planned Business to PD –
Planned Development (General Development Plan) to accommodate a retail building
reconstruction including a drive-thru. Tabled on November 9, 2015
This rezoning request for a Planned Development - General Development Plan approval to
remove the existing building and construct a new building to accommodate retail for BP and a
restaurant use for Dunkin Donuts including a drive-thru and canopy expansion was tabled at
the Nov 9, 2015 meeting to allow amendments to the plan as recommended. The applicant is
asking for flexibility for several zoning requirements as outlined in the staff review letter and
their deviation request letter. The site lighting will need to be discussed since there is existing
lighting that is likely non-conforming. We are seeking a document from the applicant that
appears to vacate the easement and r/w to the adjacent property as outlined on the provided plat
of survey. Also, there is an existing freestanding sign that was installed within the right-of-way
which was originally approved with a site plan that indicated compliance. The ordinance,
amended site plan, staff review and related materials are provided. The public hearing was
held on Nov 9th. A recommendation to Council is necessary. If approved, the applicant will
need to bring back a Specific Implementation Plan for approval similar to a site plan review. If
the SIP is approved, the zoning for this property will be the approved Specific Implementation
Plan. Once the above topics have been resolved, staff recommends approval contingent on the
staff review letter dated December 8, 2015.







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 12-14-15.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, December 14, 2015 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice Chair; Matt Hanna;
Todd Krcma; Michael Maloney; and Pat O’Connor
Absent: Scott Truehl
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey
Press: None
Guests: Tom Vavra; Tarnam Dhillon; Dennis Steinkraus; Corey Potter


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of November 9, 2015.
Motion by Christianson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by O’Connor. Motion
carried 6 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson reported ordinance 18 and 19 were unanimously approved.


4. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments. There were no questions.


5. Matt Hamacher requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to split the property
at 3279 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
Scheel explained the request. O’Connor questioned the commercial use. Scheel stated it
was for a lawn care business.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional request contingent on the Town of Rutland and Dane County approval, 2nd by
Krcma. Motion carried 6 – 0.


6. James Steindl requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to combine 2 parcels at
981 Collins Road, Town of Dunkirk.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional request contingent on the Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval, 2nd by
Christianson. Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Tom Vavra, representing Dhillon Petroleum LLC requests to rezone the properties at
1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street from PB – Planned Business to PD –
Planned Development (General Development Plan) to accommodate a retail building
reconstruction including a drive-thru. Tabled on November 9, 2015.
Scheel introduced the request.



mstacey

Highlight







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
12/14/15
Page 2 of 3


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 12-14-15.doc


Tom Vavra explained the changes to the site plan.


Scheel went over the deviations requested as identified within the provided ordinance.


A summary of the discussion that took place is as follows:


 Building height has not changed from the previous concept. The peak height is 23
feet.


 The planned development process allows deviations from corresponding traditional
zoning district code requirements on a case by case basis.


 Landscaping plan needs to be modified during the specific implementation plan
process. Many species are too large for the location planned.


 The applicant discussed their plan for snow removal, garbage pickup and stormwater
management.


 The applicant anticipates the hours for Dunkin Donuts will be from 5am – 9pm.


 Exit from drive-thru is to be modified to angle to the north to avoid headlights
shining at the home across the street when stopped before proceeding onto Gjertson
Street.


 Yield and left turn only signage to be added at drive-thru exit.


 Parking is the primary concern for the site.


 Consideration for parking at the gas pumps. The applicant believes there is potential
for 12 additional vehicles “parked” at the pumps.


 Applicant is seeking to rent parking at the adjacent lot and possibly purchasing the lot
if the site is free of contaminated soils.


 Parking in the street is not a viable option.


 Discussed employees parking elsewhere.


 Applicant stated employees would probably take 2 parking stalls.


 2 businesses on the site is a lot.


 Applicant stated they currently have 5 parking stalls and do not have a problem.


 Corey Potter (adjacent property owner) stated he would like the proposed fence
between the properties to end at the front of his building and he is still concerned
about the 15-foot setback including the height of plantings.


 The applicant reported Dunkin Donuts has a 40 second turnover to serve customers.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the Planned Development -
General Development Plan as presented, 2nd by Christianson.


Krcma questioned if Wells Fargo parking is an option. The applicant stated he would check.
Corey Potter questioned the 15-foot front setback and the plant height in that area. The applicant
stated he would accommodate the appropriate plant height so as not to block Mr. Potter’s
business.


Motion carried 6 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight







 


 


                     
 


 


 
December 7, 2015 


 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 


RE: 1009 West Main Street and 308 South Gjertson Street 


 


 


The following letter is to summarize the reasons we are requesting the property to be a considered a Planned 


Development. 


 


The property has been operating as a gas station with a car wash and has become out dated and in need of  


re-development. Once we started working on planning the re-developed site we found ourselves not able to 


fit a building on the property that would allow for a successful development for the City of Stoughton. The 


owners purchased the vacant property to the south, 308 S. Gjertson St, to allow for a more economically 


sound development. During planning of the combined properties we found that the building we would be 


required to build would not work on the site. We had many issues in the development from the building 


being over the required setbacks, not making the green space requirements, the fuel pumps being over the 


setbacks. The paving areas, mostly for the drive thru lane, were not far enough off the property lines. 


 


We then met with the City Development team and discussed our options of proposing a Planned 


Development for the site. This option allows us to develop the property in a way that will allow the owners 


of the development to have great success bringing a new, beautiful, and modern development for the 


residents of the City of Stoughton. 


 


We spent a lot of time working on the development so we could end up with a project that the City can be 


proud to have. It has also allowed the owners to obtain a retail user, Dunkin Donuts that will be a welcomed 


addition to the city.  The proposed design allows for well designated areas for patrons arriving in vehicles, 


pedestrians walking in the site, and bicyclist entering the site and having a safe place to lock their bikes.  


 


The Dunkin Donuts space will have a drive thru lane. The drive thru is designed to allow for plenty of cars 


to cue and order without causing a traffic issue within the site and or on the surrounding streets. Dunkin 


Donuts has a maximum wait of one minute and thirty seconds from the time you order to when the items 


are ready for pick up at the window which is a very short time which helps the drive thru lane remain open 


even during peak hours. The majority of the patrons for Dunkin Donuts are either the drive thru customers 


and or walk-ins for items to go. We will be installing signage that will direct the patrons to the drive thru 


and will mark all pedestrian access areas to protect the pedestrians. The drive thru lane will exit onto 


Gjertson Street where we are planning on providing a state approved pedestrian yield sign prior to the 


sidewalk and will also be providing a left hand turn only sign. The access drive at the drive thru exit will is 


also designed to encourage drivers to make a left hand turn.   


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


The owners will be adding three new fuel pumps and replace the existing fuel pumps which will provide 


increased convenience to the patrons filling up with fuel.  


 


We will be installing a privacy fence on the south side of the property to provide a buffer between our site 


and the neighbors to the south. This will not only provide a buffer for sound but keep headlights from 


shinning on the neighborhood.  


 


The site improvements will be extensive. All new asphalt paving, new concrete curbs, and all new 


landscaping, and of course the new retail building. The existing building and car wash will be demolished 


which will improve the circulation on the site and drastically improve the looks of the property. The new 


building will be placed behind the existing building adding more space to the front of the property between 


the building and the existing fuel pumps. The increased area between the fuel pumps and the parking and 


new building will allow for improved circulation for the fuel delivery trucks and the rest of the delivery 


trucks for the retail spaces. It will also improve access for all of the patrons. The site been designed to use 


the space allowed to its greatest potential which will require medium to major snow falls to have the snow 


removed from the site. This will also add to the good looks of the site by not having large snow piles on the 


site. We are also reducing the large curb cut from the site on the east side of the lot leading onto S Gjertson 


St which will not only improve the circulation on the site but help to protect pedestrians walking on the 


sidewalk by allowing for improved visibility and delineation of the sidewalk.  


 


In closing the owners are looking forward to having the opportunity to re-develop the site into a business 


that will be a great asset to the city. This project will not only add a new beautiful development to the area 


but will also add new jobs and services that are currently not available in the city. 


 


 


 


Thank you for your consideration. 


 
 







 


 


                     
 


 


December 7, 2015 


 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 


RE: 1009 West Main Street and 308 South Gjertson Street 


 


Based on the City of Stoughton zoning code we are requesting a deviation from the zoning code for the 


following items based on our development. 


 


- Our building setbacks cannot be achieved 


o Front/Street yard setback – minimum 20 feet (W Main St) 


 The existing parking lot and canopy are within this setback 


o Front/Street yard setback – Minimum 20 feet (S Gjertson St) 


 The proposed building location is 15’-0” off the property line 


o Side yard setback – minimum 40 feet 


 The proposed building 19’- 2” on the west side of the property 


o Rear yard setback – minimum 20 feet 


 The proposed building is 19’- 3” min 22’-11” max 


o Building height = Maximum of 45’-0” Proposed Building 23’-1 ½” 
 


- The property will have 10 traditional 9’-0” wide X 18’-0” deep parking spaces. The majority of 


the patrons to the convenience store and the related retail uses will be customers who will be 


parking at the gas pumps to fill up with gas and then leave their car at the pump and walk in to 


the store and shop. This typical arrangement would add a minimum of 6 additional parking 


spaces. 


 


- The existing fuel pumps concrete curbs are within the required 25’-0” setback 


 


- The new menu board for the drive thru is within the required 25’-0” setback 


 


- The new and existing landscaping equals only 13.8% (LSR) where the requirement is 25%. The 


landscaping requirements for plantings based on chapter 78 of the City of Stoughton are met and 


we are not requesting a deviation to the requirements.   


 


- The new paved area on the west is a minimum of 2’-8 ¼” and a maximum of 5’-6” off the 


property line and the new paved area on the south is 3’-6” off the property line where they both 


should be a minimum of 5’-0”. And the paved area on the east side right of way is 5’-0” and 


should be a minimum of 10-0”. 
 


 







 


 


                     
 


 


 


 
December 7, 2015 


 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 


RE: 1009 West Main Street and 308 South Gjertson Street 


       Snow Removal 


 


 


 


The following letter is to summarize the research we did on how the snow after snow storms will be handled. 


 


After having conversations with our Civil Engineer we have determined that other than small snow events 


the snow will need to be removed from the site. With the reduction of the size of the building which allowed 


us to relocate the building in such a way as to increase the grass area around the drive thru and on the sides 


of the building. This will allow for small snow events to be distributed on to the site. When there is a snow 


event that exceeds a small event the snow will be removed from the site. 


 


We have requests for proposals out at this time for the service of removing the snow from the site. Are 


request is the company must use compact loaders (bobcats) to remove the snow and put it in dump trucks 


and removed from the site to an area approved for snow storage. 


 


There is enough space on either side of the entry sidewalk in front of the building to be able to remove extra 


snow at the pedestrian areas to maintain a safe site until the snow removal during typical winter days. Then 


during big snow events the side areas would be used to keep the pedestrian area clean until the snow removal 


company arrives to remove the majority of the snow 


 


 


 


 


Thank you for your consideration. 


 
 







 


 


                     
 


 


 


 
December 7, 2015 


 


City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 


RE: 1009 West Main Street and 308 South Gjertson Street 


       Garbage Removal 


 


 


 


The following letter is to summarize the research we did on how the garbage will be removed. 


 


After having conversations with our garbage company the four yard dumpsters will be rolled out into the 


parking lot for the garbage truck to empty the dumpsters. The company at times has a small truck that can 


make the 15’-0” diameter turn radius to pick up the dumpsters at the back of the building but that would be 


only on occasion. Both tenants, the gas station and Dunkin Donuts are willing and okay with having to 


perform this task as required. Both tenants also understand that the dumpsters shall not be rolled out to the 


street for pick up and also the garbage trucks shall not back up into the site or pull in forward and back up 


into the street. 


 


 


 


 


Thank you for your consideration. 


 
 







































CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


December 8, 2015


Vavra Design LLC


Tom Vavra


P.O. Box 70087


Milwaukee, WI 53207


Dear Mr. Vavra:


I have completed a review of the proposed amended General Development Plan to construct a


new retail building including a drive-thru restaurant at 1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson


Street (BP Gas Station) - Plans received 12/7/2015. As noted, additional information may be


required to be provided or shown on the plan.


1. The properties at 1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street are zoned PB – Planned
Business. A written summary of the proposed use and redevelopment project has been
provided. This property is proposed to be rezoned from PB – Planned Business to PD
Planned Development since there is several zoning code requirements that will not be met.
The PD district does allow some flexibility for zoning code requirements. A public hearing
was held on November 9, 2015 where the Planning Commission tabled this request to
allow revisions to the plan in accordance with their recommendations and discussion.
If recommended for approval, the Common Council could approve this general
development plan at their first or second meeting in January. If the Common Council
approves the plan, a Specific Implementation Plan would need to be submitted and
approved by the Planning Commission similar to a site plan review.


2. It will be necessary to combine the two parcels at 1009 W. Main Street and 308 S.
Gjertson Street by certified survey. A CSM will need to be provided and the cost for
this process is currently $160. A Planning Commission review and Common Council
approval is necessary. The rezoning and site plan could be approved contingent on the
CSM being approved and recorded.


3. A Planned Development provides for possible relaxation of certain development standards
pertaining to the most comparable zoning district which in this case is PB – Planned
Business. This review is based on the Planned Business district requirements. A list of
exemptions or deviations from the zoning code has been provided.







4. The proposed primary uses are indoor sales (permitted by right) and indoor
commercial entertainment – restaurant (permitted as a conditional use) as follows:
Indoor sales and service is defined as follows: Indoor sales and service land uses include
all land uses which conduct or display sales or rental merchandise or equipment, or non-
personal or non-professional services, entirely within an enclosed building. Depending on
the zoning district, such land uses may or may not display products outside of an enclosed
building. Such activities are listed as “Outdoor Display Incidental to Indoor Sales” under
“Accessory Uses” in the Table of Land Uses, (subsection 78-206(8)(f)). A land use which
contains both indoor sales and outdoor sales exceeding 15 percent of the total sales area of
the building(s) on the property shall be considered an outdoor sales land use.


Indoor commercial entertainment is defined as follows: Indoor commercial
entertainment land uses include all land uses which provide entertainment services primarily
within an enclosed building. Outdoor seating or patio areas associated with a proposed
indoor commercial entertainment land use shall be allowed subject to city approval of a site
plan showing any such proposed outdoor seating or patio area. Such activities often have
operating hours which extend significantly later than most other commercial land uses.
Examples of such land uses include restaurants, taverns, theaters, health or fitness centers,
all forms of training studios (dance, art, martial arts, etc.), bowling alleys, arcades, roller
rinks, and pool halls. Regulations pertaining to indoor commercial entertainment uses are as
follows:
 If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned property, no


customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 feet, or as far as possible,
of a residentially zoned property. N/A


 Facility shall provide bufferyard with minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of the
property abutting residentially zoned property (see section 78-610). N/A


Conditions may be placed on this property related to these uses as deemed necessary
by the Planning Commission and Common Council. Outdoor seating is proposed and
can be approved as part of the site plan approval.


5. The following uses are allowable as an accessory conditional use:


In-vehicle sales or service is defined as follows: In-vehicle sales and service land uses
include all land uses which perform sales and/or services to persons in vehicles, or to
vehicles which may or may not be occupied at the time of such activity (except vehicle
repair and maintenance services, see subsection 78-206(4)(q)). Such land uses often have
traffic volumes which exhibit their highest levels concurrent with peak traffic flows on
adjacent roads. Examples of such land uses include drive-in, drive-up, and drive-through
facilities, vehicular fuel stations, and all forms of car washes. If performed in conjunction
with a principal land use (for example, a convenience store, restaurant or bank), in-vehicle
sales and service land uses shall be considered an accessory use (see subsection 78-
206(8)(g)). The following regulations apply to in-vehicle sales or service:


a. Clearly marked pedestrian crosswalks shall be provided for each walk-in customer
access to the facility adjacent to the drive-through lane(s). There is no building
access adjacent to the drive thru lane.







b. The drive-through facility shall be designed so as to not impede or impair vehicular and
pedestrian traffic movement, or exacerbate the potential for pedestrian/vehicular
conflicts. The potential for pedestrian/vehicular conflicts has been reduced at the
Gjertson Street drive-through exit. A yield sign has been proposed to further
reduce the potential conflict.


c. In no instance shall a drive-through facility be permitted to operate which endangers the
public safety, even if such land use has been permitted under the provisions of this
section. See b. above.


d. The setback of any overhead canopy or similar structure shall be a minimum of ten feet
from all street rights-of-way lines, a minimum of 20 feet from all residentially-zoned
property lines, and shall be a minimum of five feet from all other property lines. The
total height of any overhead canopy or similar structure shall not exceed 20 feet per the
measurement of roof height. The proposed expansion of the canopy will meet these
requirements. The plat of survey indicates the canopy height is approx. 18 feet.


e. All vehicular areas of the facility shall provide a surface paved with concrete or
bituminous material which is designed to meet the requirements of a minimum four ton
axle load. Expected.


f. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all property
borders abutting residentially zoned property (section 78-610). There are no abutting
residentially zoned properties. However, as recommended, 5-foot high privacy
fence is proposed along the south property line for screening.


g. Interior curbs shall be used to separate driving areas from exterior fixtures such as fuel
pumps, vacuums, menu boards, canopy supports and landscaped islands. Said curbs
shall be a minimum of six inches high and be of a non-mountable design. No curb
protecting an exterior fixture shall be located closer than 25 feet to all property lines.
The site plan does not meet the 25-foot curb setback requirement. A deviation has
been requested for this requirement.


Outdoor display incidental to indoor sales include all land uses which conduct sales,
display sales or rental merchandise or equipment outside of an enclosed building. The area
of outdoor sales shall be calculated as the area which would be enclosed by a required
physical separation installed and continually maintained in the most efficient manner which
completely encloses all materials displayed outdoors. Outdoor display incidental to indoor
sales and service is allowable as an accessory conditional use as long as the display area
does not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of the principal structure including the
following conditions:


a. The display of items shall not be permitted in permanently protected green space
areas, required landscaped areas, or required bufferyards. Plan meets this
requirement.


b. The display of items shall not be permitted within five feet of a property line. Plan
meets this requirement.







c. In no event shall the display of items reduce or inhibit the use or number of parking
stalls provided on the property below the requirement established by the provisions
of section 78-704. If the number of provided parking stalls on the property is already
less than the requirement, such display area shall not further reduce the number of
parking stalls already present. Plan meets this requirement.


d. Display areas shall be separated from any circulation area by a minimum of five feet.
This separation shall be clearly delimited by a physical separation such as a
greenway, curb, fence, or line of planters, or by a clearly marked paved area. Plan
appears to meet this requirement.


e. Signs, screening, enclosures, landscaping, or materials being displayed shall not
interfere in any manner with either on-site or off-site traffic visibility, including
potential traffic/traffic and traffic/pedestrian conflicts. Expected.


f. Outdoor display shall be permitted during the entire calendar year, however, if goods
are removed from the display area all support fixtures used to display the goods shall
be removed within ten calendar days of the goods' removal. Expected.


g. Inoperative vehicles or equipment, or other items typically stored or displayed in a
junkyard or salvage yard, shall not be displayed for this land use. Expected.


h. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all borders
of the display area abutting residentially zoned property, except per subsection e.,
above (See section 78-610.). N/A


Conditions may be placed on this property related to these uses as deemed necessary
by the Planning Commission and Common Council.


6. The parking requirement for indoor sales and in-vehicle sales uses are one space per 300
square feet of gross floor area. The proposed 5,272 square-foot building will require 18
parking stalls while 10 stalls are proposed. The plan commission may decrease the
number of off-street parking spaces by up to 25 percent based on more than one of the
following criteria:


 Technical documentation furnished by the applicant that indicates, to the satisfaction
of the plan commission, that actual off-street parking demand for that particular use is
less than the required standard set forth in this ordinance.


 Bicycle parking spaces will be provided through racks, or equivalent structures located
convenient to the proposed use.


 A public transportation route is located within 500 feet of the property.


This section would allow a reduction of 4 parking stalls for a total of 14 stalls required.
The PD zoning classification does allow flexibility for a further reduction of parking
stalls. A deviation or exception has been requested for this requirement.


7. The parking requirement for indoor commercial entertainment uses is one space per every
three patron seats or lockers (whichever is greater); or one space per three persons at the
maximum capacity of the establishment; (whichever is greater). We have been informed







the Dunkin Donut business model is primarily focused on drive-up and carry-out sales.
Parking is covered by the size of the building in #6 above.


8. Each drive-up lane shall have a minimum stacking length of 100 feet behind the pass-
through window and 40 feet beyond the pass-through window. The plan complies with
these requirements.


9. Handicapped parking spaces shall be provided at a size, number, location and with signage
as specified by state and federal regulations. This is expected.


10. Required off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall not be used for snow storage.
A plan for snow removal has been provided. Snow cannot be stored onsite to create a
vision problem for motorists/pedestrians.


11. The building shall employ only high quality, decorative construction materials on the visible
exterior as required in section 78-716. A building elevation drawing has been provided.


12. Public sidewalk shall be installed with a width of 5 feet and a minimum of 6” thick through
drive areas. The new sidewalk along Gjertson Street will need meet the existing sidewalk to
the south. Expected.


13. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25 percent. The site plan indicates
greenspace is 13.8% of the site. A deviation or exception has been requested for this
requirement.


14. The minimum paved surface setback is 5 feet from a side or rear lot line and ten feet from a
right-of-way. Any new paved surfaces are required to meet this requirement. New
paving does not meet this requirement along the south and west lot lines. A deviation
or exception has been requested for these requirements.


15. The required aisle width for the proposed parking area is 24 feet. The plan meets this
requirement.


16. Access drives may be a maximum of 30 feet wide and may be flared between the right-of-
way line and roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet. This may be exceeded
with explicit Planning Commission approval. The plan appears to meet this
requirement. Existing access drives are grandfathered.


17. The width of an access drive shall not be less than 18 feet wide. Access is defined as “a
means of providing vehicular or non-vehicular egress from or ingress to a property,
highway or private road. The plan meets this requirement. There are no specific
requirements for the drive-thru lane width. A 10-foot width is proposed to minimize
speed and we agree with this.


18. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates this property as Planned Mixed-
Use. The Planning Commission and Common Council may make a determination that
the proposed use is consistent with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan.







19. The maximum floor area ratio is 1. This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all
buildings by the gross site area. The plan meets this requirement.


20. The properties combined meet the required minimum lot area of 20,000 square feet and
minimum width of 100 feet. A CSM is necessary to combine the properties. See #2
above.


21. The principal building setback and height requirements of the Planned Business district are
as follows:


 Front/Street side yard setback – minimum 20 feet; The building is proposed to be
15 feet from the east front lot line.


 Side yard setback - minimum 40 feet (for lots adjacent to a street officially mapped
as being equal to or exceeding 100 feet); The site plan proposes 19 feet 2 inches
for a west side lot line setback.


 Rear yard setback - minimum 20 feet; The site plan proposes 19 feet 3 inches for a
south rear lot line setback.


 Building Height = max. 45 feet;


A deviation or exception has been requested for the eastern front yard setback,
western side yard setback and the southern rear yard setback.


22. One 10’ x 50’ loading stall is required for buildings over 6,000 square feet. This is
delineated on the plan. No vehicles are allowed to back into or from the street.


23. Per section 78-704 (13)(a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile
parking space requirement. There are specific requirements related to bicycle parking
in section 78-704 (13)(c). Two bicycle parking spaces are required and are delineated
on the plan.


24. A landscaping plan which meets the requirements of section 78-604 must be provided.
There are landscaping point requirements for the building foundation (40 points per 100 feet
of building foundation); paved area (60 points per 20 parking stalls or 10,000 square feet of
parking area, whichever is greater); developed lots (10 points per 1,000 square feet of
building footprint) and street frontage (40 points per 100 linear feet of street frontage). The
provided landscaping plan meets these requirements.


25. There is a 10-foot vision triangle at the drive entrances and exits that will need to be
adhered. No fence, wall, planting or structure shall be between 2.5 feet and 10 feet within
that area. The plan meets this requirement.


26. There is a 20-foot vision triangle at the northeast corner of the lot. No obstructions, signs,
plantings, fencing, parking spaces or equipment shall be between 2.5 feet and 8 feet within
that area. The plan meets this requirement.







27. Article VII of the city zoning code provides the following requirements related to lighting:
“Parking and traffic circulation areas serving 6 or more vehicles shall be lit so as to ensure
the safe and efficient use of said areas during the hours of use. An illumination level of
between 0.4 and 1.0 footcandles is recommended for said areas, and said illumination shall
not exceed 0.5 footcandles measured at the property lines.” A photometric plan is
required to be submitted to meet these requirements. Existing canopy lighting may be
considered grandfathered. This is a discussion item.


28. Section 78-707, Exterior lighting standards, requires a maximum average on-site lighting of
2.4 footcandles. The maximum lighting requirement as measured at the property line is 0.5
footcandles. Exterior lighting shall be oriented so that the lighting element is not visible
from a property located within a residential district. A photometric plan must detail this
requirement. Existing canopy lighting may be considered grandfathered. This is a
discussion item.


29. A gated trash enclosure is required with 6-foot fencing/screening. The enclosure shall be
constructed of some or all of the materials used on the main building. The plan meets this
requirement.


30. All proposed signage must meet the requirements of ArticleVIII. Details will be necessary
for any proposed new signage. Any new pole signs near overhead utility lines will need
to be approved by Stoughton Utilities.


31. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fee are required for this
proposed redevelopment. Dane County Land and Water Resources, the City’s consultant,
will review the plans and perform inspections. The plans, applications and fees shall be
submitted to the Department of Planning & Development office at City Hall.
Including a grading plan showing existing and proposed grades.


32. Electric, water and wastewater services shall be shown on the plan. A street opening
permit from the Stoughton Street Department will be necessary for any work in the
street right-of-way. Contact Stoughton Utilities regarding electric, wastewater and
water services at 608-873-3379. Utilities will need to be show on a plan.


33. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building
permit but are not necessary to begin the City review process. If approved, the foundation
location will need to be staked prior to pouring concrete and a post construction
survey will need to be provided to verify setbacks.


34. The plat of survey indicates the freestanding sign was installed over the front lot line.
We’ll have to discuss what to do about that. We will need a copy of document
#2137528 regarding vacating of the r/w and easements to the west adjacent property.
Additionally, there is a drywell on the property that will have to be properly
abandoned.







35. The following is a list of deviations we believe will be necessary to approve the plans as
proposed:


1. No curb protecting an exterior fixture shall be located closer than 25 feet to all
property lines while there is proposed curb adjacent and closer to property lines;


2. The parking requirement of 18 stalls while 9 stalls are proposed;
3. The required landscaped surface ratio is 25% while 13.8% is proposed;
4. The required setback for paved surfaces from a lot line is 5 feet from the side and


rear lot lines and 10 feet from a right-of-way while the paving is proposed to be
closer to the lot lines:


5. Building setbacks will require a deviation as follows:
Minimum required front yard setback is 20 feet while 15 feet is proposed,
Minimum required side yard setback is 40 feet while 19 feet 2 inches is proposed,
Minimum required rear yard setback is 20 feet while 19 feet 3 inches is proposed;


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,


City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


cc. Planning Commissioners
Tarnam Dhillon (via email)


s:\planning\mps\property log folder\1009 w main street\site plans submitted by vavra 12-7-15\bp review 12-8-15.docx









		7-O-1-2016-1009 W Main Street Rezone.pdf

		BP - Dunkin Donuts GDP Rezoning Request.pdf






  
 


 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 


Final resolution levying special assessments against the benefited properties for the Hults Road and 


Jackson Street related Improvements  
 
Committee Action:  


 
Finance Committee meets January 12, 2016 


 
Fiscal Impact:  


 
File Number: 


 
R-1-2016 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 12, 2016 


 


 


R E C I T A L S 


 


  


 


A. The Common Council of the City of Stoughton has declared its intention to exercise 


police powers under Wis. Stat. 66.0703, to levy special assessments upon property within the 


areas described in the Special Assessment Report attached as Attachment A (the “Engineer’s 


Final Report”), incorporated herein by reference, for benefits conferred upon each property in 


whole or in part by the installation of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, water and street 


improvements.   


 


B. On December 24, 2015, following notice published and mailed pursuant to law, the 


Common Council conducted a public hearing on the levy of special assessments in accordance 


with the Special Assessment Report.   


 


C. The purpose of this resolution is to levy special assessments upon Lot 8 of CSM 14059, 


Lots 2, 3 and 4 of CSM 9632, and Lot 2 of CSM 8144, all in the City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin (collectively the “benefitted properties”). 


 


D. The Common Council finds that benefits from such improvements will be conferred upon 


the benefitted properties. 


 


E. The owners of Lot 8 of CSM 14059, Lots 2 and 4 of CSM 9632, and Lot 2 of CSM 8144, 


have executed an agreement affirming that the improvements benefit their properties, consenting 


to the levying of special assessments for the cost of the improvements, and waiving all special 


assessment notice and hearing requirements. 







  
 


 


F. The city’s engineer has prepared the Engineer’s Final Report, attached as Attachment A. 


 


 


 


R E S O L U T I O N 


 


 The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, do resolve as 


follows: 


 


 


1. The Engineer’s Final Report is adopted and approved.  


 


2. The cost of the improvements shall be assessed against Lot 8 of CSM 14059, Lots 2, 3 


and 4 of CSM 9632, and Lot 2 of CSM 8144, as follows: 


 


Lot 8, CSM 14059 (Parcel ID No. 281/0510-014-8150-2): $212,779.05  


Lot 2, CSM 9632 (Parcel ID No. 281/0510-014-8412-2): $142,532.99 


Lot 3, CSM 9632 (Parcel ID No. 281/0510-014-8436-2): $181,353.35 


Lot 4, CSM 9632 (Parcel ID No. 281/0510-014-8451-2): $161,846.52   


Lot 2, CSM 8144 (Parcel ID No. 281/0510-014-8473-2): $146,111.02   


 


3. The assessment represents an exercise of the police power and has been determined on a 


reasonable basis and is hereby confirmed.   


 


4. Assessments may be paid in 10 annual installments, with interest at three (3) percent per 


annum. 


 


5. All assessments or installments that are not paid on or before their due date shall be 


placed upon the tax roll as a delinquent tax against the property and all proceedings in relation to 


the collection, return, and sale of property for delinquent real estate taxes shall apply to the 


special assessment, except as otherwise provided by law.   


 


6. All actions taken for the purpose of carrying this resolution into effect are hereby ratified 


and confirmed.   


 


7. The City Clerk shall publish this resolution as a class 1 notice, and shall mail a copy of 


this resolution to every interested person whose post office address is known, or can be 


ascertained with reasonable diligence.  


 


This resolution was duly adopted by motion at a meeting held on January 12, 2016.







  
 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 
 







ÍÝØÛÜËÔÛ Þ


ÌÑÌßÔ ÝÑÍÌ ÑÚ ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ×ÓÐÎÑÊÛÓÛÒÌÍ







Ë²·¬ Ì±¬¿´


Ò±ò Ü»½®·°¬·±² Ï«¿²¬·¬§ Ë²·¬ Ð®·½» Ð®·½»


ïò ïî ×Ò ÍÜÎ îê ÐÊÝ Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»® ïèî ÔÚ èëòìðü ïëôëìîòèðü


îò è ×Ò ÐÊÝ Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»® ïôðëî ÔÚ êðòððü êíôïîðòððü


íò ×²¬¿´´ Ó·²·³«³ ïéð ÔÚ ±º Ó·²·³«³


îì ×Ò Ü×ß Í¬»»´ Ý¿·²¹ º±® ïî ×Ò


Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»® øÒ± Ñ°»² Ý«¬÷


ø×ÒÝÔ Ý¿®®·»® Ð·°»÷


ï ÔÍ èîôçîêòððü èîôçîêòððü


ìò ì ÚÌ Ü×ß Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»® ÓØ ì Ûß ìôîéðòððü ïéôðèðòððü


ëò Ý±²²»½¬ Ò»© Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»® ¬± Û¨·¬·²¹


Ó¿²¸±´»


ï ÔÍ íôçèìòððü íôçèìòððü


êò è ×Ò ¾§ ê ×Ò Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»® É§» ë Ûß èìòððü ìîðòððü


éò ê ×Ò Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»® Ô¿¬»®¿´ ïìï ÔÚ ëêòëðü éôçêêòëðü


èò ïð ×Ò Ü×ß Ü× É¿¬»® Ó¿·² ïôëïì ÔÚ èîòíðü ïîìôêðîòîðü


çò ×²¬¿´´ Ó·²·³«³ ïéð ÔÚ ±º Ó·²·³«³


îð ×Ò Ü×ß Í¬»»´ Ý¿·²¹ º±® ïð ×Ò É¿¬»®


Ó¿·² ¿¬ ËÍ ëï ¿²¼ Ö¿½µ±² Í¬®»»¬


×²¬»®»½¬·±² øÒ± Ñ°»² Ý«¬÷ ø×ÒÝÔ Ý¿®®·»®


Ð·°»÷


ï ÔÍ êîôíðéòððü êîôíðéòððü


ïðò ê ×Ò Ü×ß Ü× É¿¬»® Í»®ª·½» ïïî ÔÚ èìòêðü çôìéëòîðü


ïïò ê ×Ò Ü×ß Ü× Ú·®» Ø§¼®¿²¬ Ô»¿¼ êê ÔÚ ëëòððü íôêíðòððü


Í¿²·¬¿®§ Í»©»®


É¿¬»® Ó¿·²


ÛúÒ Ø«¹¸» Ý±òô ×²½ò


ØËÔÌÍ ÎÑßÜ ËÌ×Ô×ÌÇ ÛÈÌÛÒÍ×ÑÒÍ


ÝÑÒÌÎßÝÌ ïóîðïë


ÍÌÑËÙØÌÑÒ ËÌ×ÔÌ×ÛÍô ÍÌÑËÙØÌÑÒô É×ÍÝÑÒÍ×Ò


Ú×ÒßÔ ÐßÇ ÎÛÏËÛÍÌ óÌÑÌßÔ ÐÎÑÖÛÝÌ ÝÑÍÌ


Òîêîç Ý±°´·»² Î±¿¼


Ó±²®±»ô É× ëíëêê


ÝæÄË»®Ä¦¿½¸Äß°°Ü¿¬¿ÄÔ±½¿´ÄÓ·½®±±º¬ÄÉ·²¼±©ÄÌ»³°±®¿®§ ×²¬»®²»¬ Ú·´»ÄÝ±²¬»²¬òÑ«¬´±±µÄìêÌÈéÏëÉÄß»³»²¬ Ú·²¿´ ÐÎò¨´¨ ï ±º ì







Ë²·¬ Ì±¬¿´


Ò±ò Ü»½®·°¬·±² Ï«¿²¬·¬§ Ë²·¬ Ð®·½» Ð®·½»


ÛúÒ Ø«¹¸» Ý±òô ×²½ò


Òîêîç Ý±°´·»² Î±¿¼


Ó±²®±»ô É× ëíëêê


ïîò Ú·®» Ø§¼®¿²¬ Éñ ß«¨·´·¿®§ Ê¿´ª» ¿²¼


Î±¿¼ Þ±¨


ì Ûß ìôîèéòððü ïéôïìèòððü


ïíò ïð ×Ò Ê¿´ª» ¿²¼ Î±¿¼ Þ±¨ ë Ûß ïôèìëòððü çôîîëòððü


ïìò ê ×Ò Ê¿´ª» ¿²¼ Î±¿¼ Þ±¨ º±® É¿¬»®


Í»®ª·½»


í Ûß ïôîêìòððü íôéçîòððü


ïëò Ý±²²»½¬ Ò»© É¿¬»® Ó¿·² ¬± Û¨·¬·²¹


É¿¬»® Ó¿·²


î Ûß ïôçêèòððü íôçíêòððü


ïêò î ×Ò Ý±®°±®¿¬·±² Í¬±°ô Ý«®¾ Í¬±°ô ¿²¼


Þ±¨


ï Ûß èëêòððü èëêòððü


ïéò î ×Ò É¿¬»® Í»®ª·½» íê ÔÚ ëëòððü ïôçèðòððü


ïèò Í¿´ª¿¹» ¿²¼ Î»´±½¿¬» Û¨·¬·²¹ Ú·®»


Ø§¼®¿²¬ ×ÒÝÔ Ò»© ê ×Ò ß«¨·´·¿®§ Ê¿´ª»


¿²¼ ß¾¿²¼±²³»²¬ ±º Û¨·¬·²¹ Ø§¼®¿²¬


Ô»¿¼


ð ÔÍ ìôèéëòððü óü


ïçò Ý±³³±² Û¨½¿ª¿¬·±² ïòðð ÔÍ îêôééêòððü îêôééêòððü


îðò Û¨½¿ª¿¬·±² Þ»´±© Í«¾¹®¿¼» øÛÞÍ÷ ïðè ÝÇ îðòéëü îôîìïòððü


îïò ÛÞÍ Þ¿½µº·´´ îïê Ì ïíòîðü îôèëïòîðü


îîò Ù»±¬»¨¬·´» Î±¿¼©¿§ Í«¾¹®¿¼»


Í¬¿¾·´·¦¿¬·±²


ëëì ÍÇ ïòéðü çìïòèðü


îíò Ý®«¸»¼ ß¹¹®»¹¿¬» Þ¿» Ý±«®» íôíèçòèð Ì ïêòêëü ëêôììðòïéü


îìò íð ×Ò Ý±²½®»¬» Ý«®¾ ¿²¼ Ù«¬¬»®


Î»³±ª¿´ ¿²¼ Î»°´¿½»³»²¬


éê ÔÚ íëòîðü îôêéëòîðü


îëò é ×Ò Ý±²½®»¬» Ü®·ª»©¿§ ß°®±² ±®


Í·¼»©¿´µ Î»³±ª¿´ ¿²¼ Î»°´¿½»³»²¬


éî ÍÚ çòîêü êêêòéîü


îêò ß°¸¿´¬·½ Ý±²½®»¬» Ð¿ª»³»²¬ Ô±©»®


Ý±«®»


êïðòéê Ì éíòìðü ììôèîçòéèü


Í¬®»»¬ Ý±²¬®«½¬·±²


ÝæÄË»®Ä¦¿½¸Äß°°Ü¿¬¿ÄÔ±½¿´ÄÓ·½®±±º¬ÄÉ·²¼±©ÄÌ»³°±®¿®§ ×²¬»®²»¬ Ú·´»ÄÝ±²¬»²¬òÑ«¬´±±µÄìêÌÈéÏëÉÄß»³»²¬ Ú·²¿´ ÐÎò¨´¨ î ±º ì







Ë²·¬ Ì±¬¿´


Ò±ò Ü»½®·°¬·±² Ï«¿²¬·¬§ Ë²·¬ Ð®·½» Ð®·½»


ÛúÒ Ø«¹¸» Ý±òô ×²½ò


Òîêîç Ý±°´·»² Î±¿¼


Ó±²®±»ô É× ëíëêê


îéò ß°¸¿´¬·½ Ý±²½®»¬» Ð¿ª»³»²¬ Ë°°»®


Ý±«®»


ìêëòëç Ì ééòèðü íêôîîîòçðü


îèò Ù»±¬»¨¬·´» ïôçðð ÍÇ ïòìðü îôêêðòððü


îçò Ý±²¬®«½¬ Ì»³°±®¿®§ Î±¿¼ ï ÔÍ ïìôðèêòððü ïìôðèêòððü


íðò Î»³±ª» Ì»³°±®¿®§ Î±¿¼ ï ÔÍ ìôííèòððü ìôííèòððü


íïò Ø¿«´»¼ ×² Ù®¿²«´¿® Ì®»²½¸ Þ¿½µº·´´ ìôëíðòðð Ì çòîëü ìïôçðîòëðü


íîò Ë¬·´·¬§ ×²«´¿¬·±² ïîè ÍÚ ïòíëü ïéîòèðü


ííò Ì®¿ºº·½ Ý±²¬®±´ ïòðð ÔÍ ïïôëéïòððü ïïôëéïòððü


íìò Û®±·±² Ý±²¬®±´ ïòðð ÔÍ ìôééçòððü ìôééçòððü


íëò Ì»³°±®¿®§ Û®±·±² Ý±²¬®±´ Ó¿¬


øÉ·ÜÑÌ Ý´¿ ×ô Ì§°» ß÷


îôðððòðð ÍÇ ïòçêü íôçîðòððü


íëò Ì«®º Î»¬±®¿¬·±² øÌ±°±·´ô Í»»¼ ¿²¼


Ó«´½¸÷


ïòðð ÔÍ èôéëîòððü èôéëîòððü


ß´¬ò ï ß´¬ò Ò±ò ï øÒ±®¬¸ É¿¬»® Ó¿·² Ý®±·²¹÷


ø×²½´«¼» °¿®µ·²¹ ¾´±½µô ¬®»»ô ³·½÷


ïòïìí ÔÍ ìíôèîîòððü ëðôðèîòððü


ß´¬ò í ß´¬ò Ò±ò í øÍ¬±®³ É¿¬»® Ú±®½» Ó¿·²÷ ð ÔÍ èðôîèðòððü óü


Ý¸ ï Í·´¬ Ô±¹ ·²¬»¿¼ ±º Þ¿´» Ý¸»½µ øÝ±«²¬§


Î»¯«»¬÷


ï ÔÍ ííðòððü ííðòððü


Ý¸ î ß¼¼·¬·±²¿´ ¼»¬±«® º±® Ö¿½µ±² Í¬®»»¬ î ÔÍ ïôèïïòîëü íôêîîòëðü


Ý¸ í Î»¬®¿·² Û¨·¬·²¹ Ê¿´ª» ±² Ö¿½µ±² Í¬ò


ø®»¯«·®»¼ ¬± µ»»° ¬®·° ³¿´´ ·² »®ª·½»÷


ï ÔÍ îôîððòððü îôîððòððü


Ý¸ ì Í¬®»»¬ ±°»²·²¹ó®»³±ª» ®±½µô ®»°´¿½»


½±²½®»¬» øÉ¿¬»® Ó¿·² Ý¿·²¹÷


ï ÔÍ îîôéïêòíçü îîôéïêòíçü


Ì»³°±®¿®§ Î±¿¼


Ó·½»´´¿²»±«


ß´¬»®²¿¬·ª» Þ·¼ ¿²¼ Ý¸¿²¹» Ñ®¼»®


ÝæÄË»®Ä¦¿½¸Äß°°Ü¿¬¿ÄÔ±½¿´ÄÓ·½®±±º¬ÄÉ·²¼±©ÄÌ»³°±®¿®§ ×²¬»®²»¬ Ú·´»ÄÝ±²¬»²¬òÑ«¬´±±µÄìêÌÈéÏëÉÄß»³»²¬ Ú·²¿´ ÐÎò¨´¨ í ±º ì







Ë²·¬ Ì±¬¿´


Ò±ò Ü»½®·°¬·±² Ï«¿²¬·¬§ Ë²·¬ Ð®·½» Ð®·½»


ÛúÒ Ø«¹¸» Ý±òô ×²½ò


Òîêîç Ý±°´·»² Î±¿¼


Ó±²®±»ô É× ëíëêê


Ý¸ ë Í¬®»»¬ ±°»²·²¹ ó®»³±ª» ®±½µô ®»°´¿½»


½±²½®»¬» øÚ±®½» Ó¿·² Ý¿·²¹÷


ï ÔÍ îìôëðéòïçü îìôçéëòïêü


Ý¸ ê ß¼¶«¬ ÓØ Ý¿¬·²¹ Í«°°´·»¼ ¾§ Ñ¬¸»®


øÍ¬±«¹¸¬±² Ë¬·´·¬·» ½±¬÷


ï ÔÍ íððòððü íððòððü


Ý¸ é Ó±¾·´·¦» ¬± ®»¬«®² îìó·²½¸ Í¬»»´ Ý¿·²¹


Ð·°» ø¬±®³ ©¿¬»® º±®½» ³¿·²÷


ï ÔÍ ëððòððü ëððòððü


Ý¸ è Ý¿·²¹ Í°¿½»® ¿²¼ Û²¼ Í»¿´ ø¬±®³


©¿¬»® º±®½» ³¿·²÷


ï ÔÍ ïôðïíòêçü ïôðïíòêçü


Ý¸ ç Ó±¾·´·¦» ¬± °¿ª» Ò§¹¿¿®¼ ¿²¼ Ö¿½µ±²


ø©¿¬»® ³¿·²÷


î ÔÍ ïôïððòððü îôîððòððü


Ý¸ ïð ïìó·²½¸ Ö±·²¬ Î»¬®¿·²¬ Î»¬«®² ø¬±®³


©¿¬»® º±®½» ³¿·²÷


ï ÔÍ èîëòððü èîëòððü


Ý¸ ïï ×²¬¿´´ ®·° ®¿° øØ«´¬ Î±¿¼ ®»¬±®¿¬·±²÷ ï ÔÍ ïôðððòððü ïôðððòððü


Ý¸ ïî Ñ°»² ½«¬ ¬±®³ ©¿¬»® º±®½» ³¿·² ïçð ÔÚ îìîòçðü ìêôïëïòððü


Ý¸ ïí ß·® ¬»¬ ¬±®³ ©¿¬»® º±®½» ³¿·² ï ÔÍ çëïòíìü çëïòíìü


Ý¸ ïì Ý±²½®»¬» ¾¿» °¿¬½¸·²¹ ø¬±®³ ©¿¬»®


º±®½» ³¿·² ±°»² ½«¬÷


ïïðòìð ÍÇ çìòìðü ïðôìîïòéêü


èêïôïðëòêïüÌ±¬¿´ Ý±²¬®«½¬·±² Ý±¬


ÝæÄË»®Ä¦¿½¸Äß°°Ü¿¬¿ÄÔ±½¿´ÄÓ·½®±±º¬ÄÉ·²¼±©ÄÌ»³°±®¿®§ ×²¬»®²»¬ Ú·´»ÄÝ±²¬»²¬òÑ«¬´±±µÄìêÌÈéÏëÉÄß»³»²¬ Ú·²¿´ ÐÎò¨´¨ ì ±º ì







ÍÝØÛÜËÔÛ Ý


ÌßÞÔÛÍ ÑÚ ÐÎÑÐÑÍÛÜ ßÍÍÛÍÍÓÛÒÌÍ ßÙß×ÒÍÌ ÛßÝØ ÐßÎÝÛÔ









		8-R-1-2016-Final Special Assessment Resolution.pdf

		Final Assessment Engineers Report Submittal 2015.12.09- cost breakout and assessments.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 


Resolution authorizing the conveyance of Lot 14 Stoughton Business Park  


 
Committee Action:  


 
Business Park North Committee recommends approval 6-0 & Finance meets 


January 12, 2016 


 
Fiscal Impact: $52,804.50 TIF 3 Revenue 


 
File Number: 


 
R-2-2016 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 12, 2016 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton City Council has authorized the sale of Lot 14, Stoughton 


Business Park North, in the City of Stoughton, (hereafter the "Property"), and has approved an 


agreement to sell such property to Ronald Grosso and 


 


THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute 


all documents needed in connection with the conveyance of the Property to Ronald Grosso. 
 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\BUSINESS PARK NORTH - PLANNING\11-24-15\Grosso Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: November 18, 2015


To: Business Park North Committee


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the November 24, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting and
Common Council meeting of December 8, 2015.


1. Request by Ronald Grosso to purchase 300 Business Park Circle, Lot 14, Business Park
North to build 7 duplex style incubator buildings for up to 14 small or startup companies.
The preliminary staff review and related materials are provided. The proposed buildings and
uses will need to meet all zoning and business park north covenant requirements. A
recommendation to Council is necessary.















 


Planning
Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong),
swisstopo, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the


Tax Parcels
November 19, 2015


0 0.1 0.20.05 mi


0 0.15 0.30.075 km


1:4,464


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


November 18, 2015


Ron & Kathy Grosso
400 W. Oak Street
Cottage Grove, WI 53527


Dear Mr. Grosso:


I have completed a preliminary review of the proposed building site plan for property located at 300
Business Park Circle, Lot 14, Business Park North, Stoughton, WI. 53589 – plan received 11/17/15.
As noted, additional information may be required to be provided or shown on the plan.


1. The property at 300 Business Park Circle, Stoughton is zoned PI – Planned Industrial. We have
been informed the intent is construct 7 duplex style incubator buildings for small or startup
companies. Any proposed future uses will need to meet the permitted or conditional use
requirements of the Planned Industrial District. At this time, there are no specific uses
proposed. A letter summarizing the proposed project has been provided.


2. The property is required to meet the following zoning requirements: minimum lot area (20,000
sq. ft.); minimum lot width (100 feet); and minimum street frontage (50 feet). The property
meets these requirements.


3. The proposed building minimum setback and maximum height requirements are as follows:
Front yard setback: 20 feet; Side yard setback: 10 feet; Rear yard setback: 20 feet; Maximum
building height: 40 feet; Minimum building separation: 20 feet. The plan appears to meet
these requirements. Due to the proximity of the building to the minimum setbacks, a
survey will need to be provided to confirm building foundation location. Once
constructed, a survey will need to be provided for confirmation.


4. The minimum building separation is 20 feet. The plan indicates 10 feet between buildings.


5. A conditional use permit is required for more than one principal building on a Planned Industrial
lot. A conditional use process will be necessary which can take up to 60 days.


6. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates this property as Planned Industrial
which is consistent with the zoning.


7. The parking requirement for many uses is one space per 300 square feet of gross floor area. In
this case, the parking requirement would be 4 spaces per individual unit including inside
parking.







8. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather surface
and completed prior to building occupancy. All parking spaces shall be clearly marked to
indicate required spaces. This is expected.


9. Handicap parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as
specified by state and federal regulations. This is expected.


10. Except for handicap parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a
minimum width of 9 feet. This is expected.


11. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile parking
space requirement. This is expected.


12. The parking aisle width for 90 degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet. This is expected.


13. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25%. The plan meets this requirement.


14. The maximum floor area ratio is 1. This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all
buildings by the gross site area. The plan meets this requirement.


15. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-residential
uses, as measured at the right-of-way line. Access drives may be flared between the right-of-
way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be exceeded with
explicit Plan Commission approval. This is expected.


16. The minimum paved surface setback from a side lot line is 5 feet while the minimum is 10 feet
from a right-of-way line. The plan meets this requirement.


17. Please provide separate plans for existing site conditions, proposed site/building, landscaping,
lighting, contours and utilities. This is expected.


18. Off-street loading stall requirements per section 78-705. If deliveries from large trucks are
anticipated, one off-street loading stall will need to be shown per section 78-705. A
diagram shall be provided detailing how trucks will be able to maneuver onsite. Backing
into or from the street is not allowed.


19. Except for exposed foundations not to exceed three feet in height from adjacent grade, non-
single family development shall employ only high-quality, decorative exterior construction
materials on the visible exterior of the following portions of all structures:


 Any portion of the structure within 50 feet of an adjacent residentially zoned property;
N/A


 Any portion of the structure located within 50 feet of a public right-of-way;
 Any other portion of the structure visible from a public street… The following exterior


construction materials shall not be considered “high quality, decorative”: non-decorative
concrete or cinder block, non-decorative concrete foundation walls or panels, non-
decorative plywood, asphaltic siding, or other materials using exposed fastener systems
or non-decorative surfaces as determined by the Planning Commission. However, such
materials may be allowed by the Planning Commission as decorative elements.







We will need details to confirm these requirements.


20. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and community
standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the plan commission.
Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be used on a maximum of
50 percent of the front side of the building. This material is not allowed within 50 feet of any
customer or visitor entrance. This will be determined by the Planning Commission.


21. A landscaping plan which meets the requirements of Article VI of the zoning code must be
provided.


22. Bufferyards landscaping is required where two different zoning classifications abut one another.
The adjacent properties are the same classification, so there are no bufferyard
requirements.


23. Exterior lighting standards.
All off-street parking areas shall be lit to ensure safe and efficient use. An illumination level of
between 0.4 and 1.0 footcandles are recommended and said illumination shall not exceed the
standards of section 78-707. The maximum lighting as measured at the property line is 0.5
footcandles. The maximum average on-site lighting shall be 2.4 footcandles. The minimum
lighting standard for parking areas used after sunset shall be 0.2 foot-candles. The lighting
element shall not be visible from the residentially zoned properties. A photometric plan will
need to be provided to verify these requirements.


24. All exterior trash storage areas shall be located within a gated enclosure which completely
screens the view a said trash. The exterior of said enclosure shall be constructed of some or all
of the materials used on the main building. We will need details regarding this requirement.


25. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fees are required. Dane
County Land Conservation, the City’s consultant, will review the plan and perform inspections.
The plan, application and fees shall be submitted to the Department of Planning &
Development office at Stoughton City Hall.


26. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown on the
utility plan. Contact Robert Kardasz, Stoughton Utilities for electric, water and
wastewater services. HVAC equipment and electric transformers shall be screened from
street view.


27. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage. This is expected.


28. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and permit prior to installation. Signage
must meet the requirements of zoning code, articleVIII.


29. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building
permit but are not necessary to begin the City review process.







Business Park Covenants:


The following items are contained in the Business Park Covenants and will need to be addressed as
noted:


1. Plan Submittal
a. Name and mailing address of developer/owner. Provided.


b. Utilities and utility right of way easements. The easement is contained within the
75-foot conservation area at the rear of the property. All existing and proposed
utilities will need to be shown.


c. Exterior signs. A plan shall be submitted if signage is planned.


d. Exterior Lighting. A compliant photometric plan shall be provided.


e. Clearing, grading, and drainage plan showing proposed clearing limits, existing and
proposed contours at two foot intervals. Expected


f. Site statistics, including site square footage, percent of site coverage’s and percent of
park or open space. Expected


g. All exterior materials and colors, including manufacturer’s name and catalogue
numbers or samples of the same. Expected


h. Location and dimensions of all proposed outdoor storage areas, and the location and
dimensions of all fencing and screening. No outdoor storage or fencing is
currently proposed.


2. Development Standards


a. “All electrical and air conditioning structures, including towers and air handling
units, regardless of location and whether on the roof or otherwise, shall be concealed
by landscaping or by decorative screening materials which form an integral part of
the design.” This will need to be shown.


b. All areas intended to be utilized for parking space and driveways shall be surfaced
with bituminous asphalt or concrete.” Expected to be paved as proposed.


c. “All parking stalls shall be marked with painted lines not less than 4” wide.”
Expected.


d. “No parking areas will be permitted within the building set back lines with the
following two exceptions:
1. Office employee and visitor parking may be permitted within the front yard


setback lines subject to approval of the Committee. N/A.


2. Lots bounded by more than one road may have parking areas within the
building set back lines along roads other than the one on which the building
fronts subject to approval by the Committee.” NA


e. “A scale drawing of any sign, trademark or advertising device to be used on any lot
or the exterior of any building or structure will be submitted to the Committee in
triplicate or the written approval by the Committee.” None proposed.


f. “The front yard setback area shall be landscaped with an effective combination of
trees, ground cover and shrubbery. All unpaved areas not utilized for parking shall







be landscaped in a similar manner. The entire area between the curb and a point 10
feet in back of the front property line shall be landscaped, except for any access
driveway in said area. Notwithstanding the above, the entire area between
the right-of-way and the building setback line shall be densely landscaped with a
combination of effective visual screening on all use areas.” Expected to be
consistent with existing development and previous approvals.


g. “Areas used for parking shall be landscaped and/or fenced in such a manner as to
interrupt or screen said areas from view of access streets, freeways, and adjacent
properties. Plant materials used for this purpose shall consist of lineal or grouped
masses of shrubs and/or trees.” Expected to be consistent with existing
development and previous approvals.


h. “All outdoor storage shall be visually screened from access streets and adjacent
property.” No outdoor storage is allowed unless reviewed and approved as part
of a conditional use process.


i. “Outdoor storage shall be meant to include parking of all company owned and
operated vehicles, with the exception of passenger vehicles.” Outdoor storage may
need to be considered, if applicable.


j. “All outdoor refuse collection areas shall be visually screened from access streets
and adjacent property by a complete opaque screen.” If necessary, specifications
need to be provided.


k. “Architectural Review. The Business Park North Committee will take into
account the appearance of all buildings, parking areas and storage areas.”


3. Any other information considered pertinent by the Committee.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\property log folder\300 business park circle\grosso 2015\grosso prelim review letter 15.doc







Approved by the Wisconsin Department of Regulation and Licensing
03-1-11 (Optional Use Date) 07-1-11 (Mandatory Use Date)


Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
Page 1 of 10, WB-13


w)TICENSEE ÐRAFTING THIS OFFER ON
lsTnxe rHo.se t¡or nppLlcnelr I


The Buyer, GlP-Stouqhton LLC . b.r¡ Ronald Grosso


LAND OFFER TO PURC


GENERAL PROVISI
, offers to purchase the ProPertY


Lot 14 Stouqhton Busíness ParkNorth


1


2
â


4


5


6


7


o
q


10


11


12


known as lstreet Address]
in the city of s ton , County of Dane Wisconsin (lnsert
additional description, if any, at lines 458-46 4 or 526-534 or attach as an addendum per line 525), on the following terms:


r PURCHASE PRICE: Fi ftv-Two Thousand Ei crh t Hundred Four 50./100
Dollars ($ 52 804 . 50


r EARNEST MONEY of $ accompanies this Offer and earnest money of $ 1 000.00
will be mailed, or commercially or personally delivered within 7 days of acceptance to lis+ingrb+ekeee+


ci tw of Stouohton
13 ¡ THE BALANCE OF PURCHASE PRICE will be paid in cash or equivalent at closing unless othenruise provided below.


14 ¡ INCLUDED lN PURCHASE PRICE: Seller is including in the purchase price the Property, all Fixtures on the Property on the
15 date of this Offer not excluded at lines 1B-19, and the following additional items none
16


17


18 I NOT INCLUDED IN PURCHASE PRICE: none
19


20 CAUTION: ldentify Fixtures that are on the Property (see lines 290-294) to be excluded by Seller or which are rented
21 and will continue to be owned by the lessor.
zz NOTE: The terms of this Offer, not the listing contract or marketing materials, determine what items are
23 ¡ncluded/excluded. Annual crops are not part of the purchase price unless otherwise agreed.
24


25
r ZONING: Seller
ACCEPTANCE


represents that the Property is zoned: Cornmercial
Acceptance occurs when all Buyers and Sellers have signed one copy of the Offer, or separate but identical


z0 copies of the Offer.
27 GAUTION: Deadlines in the Offer are commonly calculated from acceptance. Consider whether short term deadlines
28


29


run from nce adequate time for both binding acceptance and performance.
This Offer is binding upon both Parties only if a copy of the accepted Offer is delivered to Buyer on


30 0r re December 9 20L5 Seller may keep the Property on the


s1 market and accept secondary offers after binding acceptance of this Offer
32


33


34


CAUTION: This Offer be withdrawn prior to delivery of the accepted Offer.
TERMS OFTHISOFFERTHATARE PRECEDED BYAN OPEN BOX( N ) ARE PART OF THIS


S MARKED SUCH AS WITH AN ''X.'' THEY ARE NOT PART OF THIS OFFER IF MARKED ''N/A''


Unless otherwise stated in this Offer, delivery of documents and


en accomplished by one of the methods sPecified at lines 38-56


F THE BOX I


35 OR ARE LEFT BLANK.


written notices to a Party shall be effective only
(1) Personal Delivery: giving the document or written notice personal
named at line 40 or 41.
Seller's reci tauríe Sulliwan


ly to the Party, or the Party's recipient for delivery if


OPTIONAL PROVISIONS


D WRITTEN NOTICESE


Buyer's rec
pient for d
ipient for d Ronald Grosso


36


37
JIJ
ao


40
41


42
43
44
45
46
47
48


Selle
e ument or


commercial delivery service,
Delivery: depos


addressed
ng
eith erto the Party, or


delivery
l-x I (4)
or to the
Delivery
Delive address for Buyer:


or


Street
ng document or written notice to


to the Party's delivery address at line 49 or 50.
U.S. Mail:'depositini the document or written notice postage prepaid in the U.S. Mail, addressed either to theParty,
eartys recipiènt foräelivery if named at line 40 or 41, for délivery to the Party's delivery address at line 49 or 50.


addressforSeller: 381 East Main Street, Stouqhton' WI 53589
ry
5)


3527
l"l
55 or


E-Mail: electronically transm e-mail address, below at line
re used primarily for
sented electronically


56. lf this is a consumer transaction where the property being purchased or e sale proceeds a
rsonal, family or hou


of electronic
sehold purposes, each consumer providing an e-mail addres s below has first con


49
50
51


52
Ã2


54
55
56


57


58


pe
to the use docu e-maildel


1sul].i
ivery and electronic signatures in the transaction, as required by federal law


E-Mail address for Seller option
E-Mail address for B


cl_.s l- . t1s
. com


Personal delivery to, or Actual Receipt by, any named Buyer or Seller


constitutes personal livery to, or Actual Receipt by, all Buyers or Sellers.


Stâfford Rosenbaum LLP 222 W. Washington Ave Madison, WI 53701 Phone:608-256-0226 Fax:608-663'6350


Stafford Rosenbaum produced with zipForm@ by z¡pLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 M.ziDlooix.com
5649-183 I GIP-







Property Address: T.a+ 1 á atarr¡h lnn El:r c i ¡ac c Þ= rl¡Na¡l.lr e l¡TT


, which was received


Page 2 of 10, WB-13


to


un@loccupancyoftheentirePropertyshallbegiVentoBuyerattimeofcloSingunlesSotherwiseproVidedinthis
oo O-ffer at lines +58-464 or 526-534 or in an addendum attached per line 525. At time of Buyer's occupancy, Property shall be


61 free of all debris and personal property except for personal property belonging to current tenants, or that sold to Buyer or left
oz with s consent. Occu shall be iven subject to tenant's rights, if any
bJ Seller represents to Buyer that as of the date of acceptance Seller has no


o¿ notice or knowledge of Conditions Affecting the Property or Transaction (lines '163-187 and 246-278) other than those
6s identified in the Seller's disclosure report dated
66 Buyer signing this Offer and which is made a part of this Offer by reference
oz and n/a
68


76


77


78
70


80


81


82


83


84


69


70 EEI!@I This transaction is to be closed no later than Januarv 29. 20t6
71 at the place selected by Seller, unless otheruvise agreed by the Parties in writing.
72 The following items, if applicable, shall be prorated at closing, based upon date of closing values:
z3 real estate taxes, rents, prepaid insurance (if assumed), private and municipal charges, property owners association
74 assessments, fuel and no ot'her
75 CAUTION: Provide basis for utility charges, fuel or other prorations if date of closing value will not be used.


Any income, taxes or expenses shall accrue to Seller, and be prorated at closing, through the day priorto closing.


Real estate taxes shall be prorated at closing based on [CHECK BOX FOR APPLICABLE PRORATION FORMULA]:
l-l tne net general real estate taxes for the preceding year, or the current year if available (Net general real estate
taxes are defined as general property taxes after state tax credits and lottery credits are deducted) (NOTE: THIS CHOICE
APPLTES rF NO BOX tS CHECKED)
lãl Current assessment times current mill rate (current means as of the date of closing)


year,
Sale price, multiplied by the municipality area-wide percent of fair market value used by the assessor in the prior


or current year if known, multiplied by current mill rate (current means as of the date of closing)


Bs CAUTION: Buyer is informed that the actual real estate taxes for the year of closing and subsequent years may be
eo substantially different than the amount used for proration especialty in transactions involving new construction,
a7 extens¡ve rehabilitation, remodeling or area-wide re-assessment. Buyer is encouraged to contact the local assessor


regarding possible tax changes.
l-l Buyer and Seller agree to re-prorate the real estate taxes, through the day prior to closing based upon the taxes on


the actual tax bill for the year of closing, with Buyer and Seller each owing his or her pro-rata share. Buyer shall, within 5
days of receipt, forward a copy of the bill to the foruvarding address Seller agrees to provide at closing. The Parties shall


re-prorate within 30 days of Buyer's receipt of the actual tax bill. Buyer and Seller agree this is a post-closing obligation
and is the responsibility of the Parties to complete, not the responsibility of the real estate brokers in this transaction.


88


B9


90


91


92


93


94
oÃ


96


97


98
oo


00
0'1


02
03
04
05
06
07
08
09
10


11


12


13


14


15
16
17
18
19
20


lfProperty i+eurrently leased and,]ease(s) extend-beyend-elesing; Seller shall assign Seller'+rights


(w+¡+tenlþ+at)
, lnsert additienal terms, if any, at lines 158 46 I er 526 53 I er attaeh as an addendum per line 525,


ln%l COVeRNMENT PROGRAMS: Seller shall deliver to Buyer, within _ days of acceptance of this Offer, a list of all
federal, state, county, and localconservation, farmland, environmental, orother_land use programs, agreements, restrictions,
or conóervation eaéóments, which apply to any part of the Property (e.9., farmland preservation agreements, farmland
preservation or exclusive agricultural zon-ing, usé value assessments, Forest Crop, Managed Forest, Conservation Reserve
Þrogram, Wetland mitigatiõn, shoreland z-oning mitigation plan or comparable pro-grams),_ alon-q_with disclosure of a.nY


penálties, fees, withdraúral charges, or paybactiobligãtions pending, or-currently deferred, ilqny- This contingency will be
äeemed óatisfied unless Buyer dêlivers to Seller, with-in seven (7) days of Buyer's Actual Receipt of said list and disclosure, or
the deadline for delivery, whichever is earlier, a notice terminating this Offer based upon the use restrictions, program
requirements, and/or amount of any penalty, fee, charge, or payback obligation. _
CRUflOru: lf Buyer does not terniinate tliis Offer, Buyer is hêreby agreeing that Buyer will continue in such p_rogFTs,
as may apply, aird Buyer agrees to reimburse Sellel should Buyeifail to continue anysuch program such that Seller
incurs any côsts, penált¡esl damages, or fees that are imposed because the program is not continued after sale. The
Parties agree this provision survives closing.
lr'%l UnrunGED FOREST LAND: All, or part, of the Property is managed forest land under the Managed Forest Law (MFL).
tfris Oesignation will continue after ciosing. Buyer is adlised as follows: The MFL is a landowner incentive p.rogram. that
encouragéssustainableforestryon privatewoodiands by reducing and defering property !q*gl Qt-{gtt designating lands as
manageð forest lands remain in effect for25 or 50 years. When ownership of land enrolled in the MFL program changes, the
new o-wner must sign and file a report of the changê of ownership on a form provided by the Department of Natural Resources
and pay a fee. By fÏing this form,'the new ownerãgrees to the associated MF_L management plan and the MFL program.rules.
fne bÑR Divisioñ of Fórestry monitors forest manaþement plan compliance. Changes ygu make to property that is subject to
an order designating it as m-anaged forest land, or to its use, may jeopardize your benefits under the program or may c?uPe
the property tó ne r,i¡tnOrawn froin the program and may result iñ the assessment of penalties. For more information call the
local DNR forester or visit http://www.dnr.state.wi.us.


Produced w¡th zipForm@ by ziplogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Mich¡gan 48026 w.zþLogix.com 5649- I 83 I GIP-


ease(sÌ-i+a+V;-a+e







Page 3 of '10, WB-13


121 FENGES: Wis. Stat. S 90.03 requires the owners of adjoining properties to keep and maintain legal fences in equal shares
rzz where one or both of the properties is used and occupied for farming or grazing p[rposes.
rzs CAUTION: Consider an'agjreement addressing ròsponsibility ior fénces if Property or adjoining land is used and
tz+ occupied for farming or grazing purposes.
r zs USE Vnlue ASSESéMEÑfS: irr'e ude value assessment system values agricultural land based on the income that would be
126 generated from its rental for agricultural use rather than its fâir market valuê. When a person converts agricq.llural land to a
et Áon-agricultural use (e.g., resiðential or commercialdevelopment), that pe.rggn may owe a conversion^charge. Toobtain more
128 inform-ation about thè üse value law or conversion chargè, coniact th'e Wiscondin Department of Revenue's Equalization
tzg Section or visit htto://www.revenue.wi.gov/.
13oFARMLANDPRffiapropertyzonedfarmlandpreservationtoanotheruseortheearlyterminationofa
131 farmland preservation agreement or remõvai of 


'land 
from such an agreement cantrigger.payment.of a conversion fee equal to


132 g times the class 1 "usel/alue" of the land. ContacttheWisconsin DèpartmentofAgriculture, Tradeand ConsumerProtection
rgs Division of Agricultural Resource Management or visit hltp4wwrv.datcp.slate.wi.us/ for more information.
rs¿ GONSERVAî|ON RESERVE PROGRÃM (CRP): TheTRÞ encourages farmers, through contracts with the U.S. Department
.rss of Ag¡culture, to stop growing crops on hiòhV érodible or environmêntally sensitive land and instead to plant a.protective
136 cove"r of grasé or treés.-cRP ðontràcts run íori 0 to 15 years, and_o_w¡ers ieceve an annual rent plus one-half of the cost of
rsz establishing permanent ground cover. Removing lands-from the CRP in breach of a contract can be quite costly. For more
rse information cãll the state-Farm Service Agency office or visit http://www.fsa.usda.got¡/
rse SHORELAND ZONING ORDINANCES: All-counties must adopt shoreland zoning ordinances that meet or are more
r¿o restrictive than Wis. Admin. Code Chapter NR 115. County shorbland zoning ordinances apply to all unincorporated land
141 within 1,000 feet of a navigable lake, pond or flowage or within 300 feet of a navigable river or stream a-nd establish minimum
r¿z standarðs for building sðtbacks anO treiglrt limitð, cutting trees and shrubs, lot sizes, water runoff, impervious surface
143 standards (that may bê exceeded only if ãmitigation plan is adopted) and repairs to n_onconforming structures. Buyers must
144 conform to'any exisiing mitigation plaris. For mõre info'rmation cali-the.county zoning office or visit http://)4rww.dlr.state.wi.usi.
r+s Buyer is advis'ed to chéck,¡vitn tne'applicable city, town or village for additiohal shoreland zoning restrictions, if any.


FzuyER's pRE-cLoslNG wALK-THRoucH I within 3 days prior to closing, at a reasonable time pre-approved by Seller or
Seller's agent, Buy


of
er shall have the right to walk through the
the Property, except


Property to determine that there has been n cant change
in the condition for ordinary wear and tear and cha any defects
Seller has reed to cure have been in the manner reed to by the


o signifi
nd thatnges approved by Buyer, a


Parties.
CLOSINGDAMAGE BETWEEN


146


147
148
149


150


151


152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159


160


161 ¡
162 tten notice hysical in the
163 I


"Actual Receipt' ' means that a , l'ì


ard
if any, has the document or


Property or Transaction" are
to+ defined to include:
165 a. proposed, planned or commenced public improvements or public construction projects which may result in special
166 assässments or othenruise materially àffect the Property or the present use of the Property.
roz b. Government agency or court order iequiring repair, altèration or correction of any.existing condition.
168 c. Land division o-r su6division for which iequiied state or local approvals were not obtained.
rog à. Aportionofthepropertyinafloodplain,wetlandorshorelandzoningareaunderlocal,stateorfederal regulations.
tto e. À þortion of tnã property Ueing subject'to, or in violatioq of, a farmlãnd preservation ag.re^ement.or in a certified farmland
171 präservation zóning'dist'rict (sðe linés 130-133), or enrolled in, or ìn violátion of, a Forest Crop, Managed Forest(see lines
172 111-120), Conservãtion Reserve (see lines 134-138), or comparable.program.
nt r. aounoãiy or toi ãisþutàs, encroaihments or encumórances, a- joint diiveway .or violation of fence laws (Wis. Stat. ch. 90)


174 (where one or both'of the properties is used and occupied for farming or grazing).
17s g. Material violations of envirbnrirental rules or other rules or agreements regulating.the yse of,the Property.
nø á. Conditions constituting a significant health risk or safety hazard for occu-pants of the Property.
177 i. Undergrouno stòiãgitãnt<Ë presentty or previously ón the Property fbr storage of flammable or combustible liquids,


178 including, but not limited to, gasoline and heating oil.
tzs j. À oàiáci'or contamination'cäused by unsafe cóncentrations of, or unsafe conditions relating to,.pesticides, herbicides,
1Bo fertilizer, radon, radium in water supfllies, lead or arsenic in soil, or other potentially hazardous or toxic substances on the
181 premises.
182 k. Þroduction of methamphetamine (meth) or other hazardous or toxic substances on the Property
ra¡ i. Higtr vottage àleCtric (too xv orþreatâr¡ or steel natural gas transmission lines located on but not directly serving the
1a4 Property.
185 m. Defbcts in anv well, includinq unsafe well water due to contaminants such as coliform, nitrates and atrazine, and out-of-
186 service wells ånOiiitàrns rei'uired to be abandoned (Wis. Admin. Code S NR 812,26) but that are not closed/abandoned
187 according to applicable regulations.
tae (Definitions Continued on page 5)


producedw¡thz¡pForm@byziplogix lEoToF¡fteenMileRoad,Fraser,M¡chigan48026 ww.z¡pLoqix.com 5649-l83lGIP-


DEFINITIONS







Property Address: T.nf 14 Storrctrton Brr ì nacc Þael¡\tnrÈlr Sl-arrahf on TâlT Page 4 of 10, WB-13


189 IF LINE 190 IS NOT MARKED OR IS MARKED N/4, LINES 230.236 APPLY.
lso fnTJ FINANCING CONTINGENGY: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer being able to obtain a written
191 IINSERT LOAN PROGRAM OR SOURCEIfirst mortgage
1e2 loan commitment as described below, within _ days of acceptance of this Offer. The financing selected shall be in an


193amountofnotlessthan$-foratermofnotlessthan-yearS,amortizedoVernotlessthan-yearS.
1s4 lnitial monthly payments of principal and interest shall not exceed $ Monthly payments may


rgs also include 1l12th of the estimated net annual real estate taxes, hazard insurance premiums, and private mortgage insurance
tso premiums. The mortgage may not include a prepayment premium. Buyer agrees to pay discount points and/or loan origination
197feeinanamountnottoexceed-%oftheloan.lfthepurchaSepriceunderthisofferismodified,thefinancedamount,
t9e unless otherwise provided, shall be adjusted to the same percentage of the purchase price as in this contingency and the
tss monthly payments shall be adjusted as necessary to maintain the term and amortization stated above.
2oo CHECK AND COMPLETE APPLICABLE FINANCING PROVIS¡ON AT LINE 201 or 202.
201


202


203


204


205


206


207


208


209


210


211


212


213


214


215


216


217


218


219


220


221


222


235


236


237


238


239


240


241


242


243


244


zzs . FINANCING UNAVAILABILITY: lf financing is not available on the terms stated in this Offer (and Buyer has not already
zz¿ delivered an acceptable loan commitment for other financing to Seller), Buyer shall promptly deliver written notice to Seller of
22s same including copies of lender(s)' rejection letter(s) or other evidence of unavailability. Unless a specific loan source is


226 named in this Offer, Seller shall then have'10 days to deliver to Buyer written notice of Sellerls decision to finance this


227 tansaction on the same terms set forth in this Offer and this Offer shall remain in fullforce and effect, with the time for closing
zze extended accordingly. lf Seller's notice is not timely given, this Offer shall be null and void. Buyer authorizes Seller to obtain


22s any credit information reasonably appropriate to determine Buyer's credit worthiness for Seller financing.
230 . lF TH|S oFFER lS NoT coNTtNGENT oN FtNANctNG: Within 7 days of acceptance, a financial institution or third party


231 in control of Buyer's funds shall provide Seller with reasonable written verification that Buyer has, at the time of verification,


zsz sufficient funds to close. lf such written verification is not provided, Seller has the right to terminate this Offer by delivering


zss written notice to Buyer. Buyer may or may not obtain mortgage financing but does not need the protection of a financing


zs+ contingency. Seller agrees to allow Buyer's appraiser access to the Property for purposes of an appraisal. Buyer understands


tr FIXED RATE FINANCING: The annual rate of interest shall not exceed -/o 
-


tr ADJUSTABLE RATE FINANCING: The initial annual interest rate shall not exceed %. The initial interest


rate shall be fixed for _ months, at which time the interest rate may be increased not more than o/o per


year. The maximum interest rate during the mortgage term shall not exceed %. Monthly payments of principal


and interest may be adjusted to reflect interest changes.
lf Buyer is using multiple loan sources or obtaining a construction loan or land contract financing, describe at lines 458-464 or


526-534 or in an addendum attached per line 525.
r BUYER'S LOAN COMMITMENT: Buyer agrees to pay all customary loan and closing costs, to promptly apply for a
mortgage loan, and to provide evidence of application promptly upon request of Seller. lf Buyer qualifies for the loan described


in this Offer or another loan acceptable to Buyer, Buyer agrees to deliver to Seller a copy of the written loan commitment no


later than the deadline at line 192. Buyer and Seller agree that delivery of a copy of any written loan commitment to
Seller (even if subject to conditions) shall satisfy the Buyer's financing contingency if, after review of the loan


commitment, Buyer has directed, in writing, delivery of the loan commitment. Buyer's written direction shall
accompany the loan commitment. Delivery shall not satisfy this contingency if accompanied by a notice of
unacceptability.
CAUTION: The delivered commitment may contain conditions Buyer must yet satisfy to obligate the lender to provide
the Ioan. BUYER, BUYER,S LENDER AND AGENTS OF BUYER OR SELLER SHALL NOT DELIVER A LOAN


COMMITMENT TO SELLER OR SELLER'S AGENT WITHOUT BUYER'S PRIOR WRITTEN APPROVAL OR UNLESS


ACCOMPANIED BY A NOTIGE OF UNACCEPTABILITY.
r SELLER TERMINATION RIGHTS: lf Buyer does not make timely delivery of said commitment, Seller may terminate this


Offer if Seller delivers a written notice of termination to Buyer prior to Seller's Actual Receipt of a copy of Buyer's written loan


commitment.


and agrees that this Offer is not subject to the appraisal meeting any particular value, unless this Offer is subject to an


a raisal contingency, nor does the right of access for an appraisal constitute a financing contingency


APPRAISAL CONTINGENCY: This Offer is contingent upon the Buyer or Buyer's lender having the Property appra ised


at Buyer's expense by a Wisconsin licensed or certified independent appraiser who issues an appraisal report dated


subsequent to the date of this Offer indicating an appraised value for the Property equal to or greater than the agreed upon


purchase price. This contingency shall be deemed satisfied unless Buyer, within 


- 


days of acceptance, delivers to


Seller a copy of the appraisal report which indicates that the appraised value is not equal to or greater than the agreed upon


purchase price, accompanied by a written notice of termination.
CAUTION: An appraisal ordered by Buyer's lender may not be received until shorf ly before closing. Gonsider whether
deadlines provide adequate time for performance.


produced with z¡pForm@ by z¡pLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, l\¡ichigan 48026 w.zioLooix.com 5649-1831 GIP-







ìE3245


246


247


248


249


250


251


252


253


254


255


256


257


258


259


260


261


262


263


264


265


266


267


268


269


270


271


272


273


274


275


276


277


278


279


280


281


282


283


284


285


286


287


288


289


290


291


292


293


294


295


296


297


298
299
300
301


302
303
304
305


n


o


Page 5 of 10, WB-13


Defects in any septic system or other sanitary disposal system on the Property or out-of-service septic systems not


closed/abandoned according to applicable regulations.
Subsoil conditions which would significantly increase the cost of development including, but not limited to, subsurface


foundations or waste material; organic or non-organic fill; dumpsites where pesticides, herbicides, fertilizer or other toxic


or hazardous materials or containers for these materials were disposed of in violation of manufacturer's or government


guidelines or other laws regulating said disposal; high groundwater; adverse soil conditions (e.9. low load bearing


capacity, earth or soil movement, slides) or excessive rocks or rock formations.
Brownfields (abandoned, idled or under-used land which may be subject to environmental contamination) or other


contaminated land, or soils contamination remediated under PECFA, the Department of Natural Resources (DNR)


Remediation and Redevelopment Program, the Agricultural Chemical Cleanup Program or other similar program.


Lack of legal vehicular access to the Property from public roads
Homeowners' associations, common areas shared or co-owned with others, zoning violations or nonconforming uses,


conservation easements, restrictive covenants, rights-of-way, easements, easement maintenance agreements, or use of
a part of Property by non-owners, other than recorded utility easements.
Special purpose district, such as a drainage district, lake district, sanitary district or sewer district, that has the authority to


impose assessments against the real property located within the district.
Federal, state or local regulations requiring repairs, alterations or corrections of an existing condition.
Property tax increases, other than normal annual increases; completed or pending property tax reassessment of the


Property, or proposed or pending special assessments.
Burial sites, archeological artifacts, mineral rights, orchards or endangered species.
Flooding, standing water, drainage problems or other water problems on or affecting the Property.


Material damage from fire, wind, floods, earthquake, expansive soils, erosion or landslides.


Significant odor, noise, water intrusion or other irritants emanating from neighboring property.


Substantial crop damage from disease, insects, soil contamination, wildlife or other causes; diseased trees; or substantial


injuries or disease in livestock on the Property or neighboring properties.


Existing or abandoned manure storage facilities on the Property.
lmpact fees, or other conditions or occurrences that would significantly increase development costs or reduce the value of


the Property to a reasonable person with knowledge of the nature and scope of the condition or occurrence.


cc. The Property is subject to a mitigation plan required by DNR rules related to county shoreland zoning ordinances that


obligates the owner to establish or maintain certain measures related to shoreland conditions, enforceable by the county


(see lines 139-145).
dd. All or part of the land has been assessed as agricultural land, the owner has been assessed a use-value conversion


charge or the payment of a use-value conversion charge has been deferred.


I DEADLINES: "Deadlines" expressed as a number of "days" from an event, such as acceptance, are calculated by excluding


the day the event occurred and by counting subsequent calendar days. The deadline expires at midnight on the last day.


Deadlines expressed as a specific number of "business days" exclude Saturdays, Sundays, any legal public holiday under


Wisconsin or Federal law, and any other day designated by the President such that the postal service does not receive


registered mail or make regular deliveries on that day. Deadlines expressed as a specific number of "hours" from the


occurrence of an event, such as receipt of a notice, are calculated from the exact time of the event, and by counting 24 hours


per calendar day, Deadlines expressed as a specific day of the calendar year or as the day of a specific event, such as


closing, expire at midnight of that day.
I Ogf eCÍ: "Defect" means a condition that would have a significant adverse effect on the value of the Property; that would


sigñifican¡y impair the health or safety of future occupants of the Property; or that if not repaired, removed or replaced would


significantly shorten or adversely affect the expected normal life of the premises.


r EIXIUBE: A "Fixture" is an item of property which is physically attached to or so closely associated with land so as to be


treãteO as part of the real estate, including, without limitation, physically attached items not easily removable without damage


to the premises, items specifically adapted to the premises, and items customarily treated as fixtures, including, but not limited


to, all: perennial crops; garden bulbs; plants; shrubs and trees and fences; storage buildings on permanent foundations and


docks/piers on permanent foundations.
CAUTION: Excludeany Fixturesto be retained by Sellerorwhich are rented on lines 18-19.


p.


q


r,


S.


t.


u.


W.


X.


v
z.


dd


bb


Unless otherwise stated "Property" means the real estate described at lines 4-7


PME







Propefty Address: 1.^+ 1 A e+arræl^#an Þrrêì ñâÊê Þarl¡lJar{-lr S+ lrtT Page 6 of 10, WB-13


306 l;Td PROPOSED USE CONTINGENGIES: Buyer is purchasing the Property for the purpose of:


307


308


3oe linsert proposed use and type and size of building, if applicable; e.g. three bedroom single family home]. The optional
sto provisions checked on lines 314-345 shall be deemed satisfied unless Buyer, within 


-daysof 


acceptance, delivers
311 written notice to Seller specifying those items which cannot be satisfied and written evidence substantiating why each specific
312 item included in Buyer's notice cannot be satisfied. Upon delivery of Buyer's notice, this Offer shall be null and void. Seller
313


314
315


316


317


318


319


320
321


322
323


324


325
326
327


328


329


330


331


332
333


334


335


336


337


338


339


340


341


342


343


344
345


agrees to cooperate with Buyer as necessary to satisfy the contingencies checked at lines 314-350.
ln%lZOtrlll,¡C Cl-RSSlf ICRÏON COruf lRURtlOtl: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buye/s) (Setle+s)


("Buyer's" if neither is stricken) expense, verification that the Property is zoned
and that the Property's zoning allows the Buyer's proposed use described at lines 306-308


l-l SUSSOItS: This offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's) (Seller's) ("Buyer's if neither
is stricken) expense, written evidence from a qualified soils expert that the Property is free of any subsoil condition which
would make the proposed use described at lines 306-308 impossible or significantly increase the costs of such
development.
l-ìpRlvare oNStTE WASTEWATER TREATMENT SYSTEM (PowTS) SUITABILITY: This offer is contingent
upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's) (Selle/s) ISTR-lRref¡-Ël ("Buyer's" if neither is stricken) expense, written evidence from
a certified soils tester that (a) the soils at the Property locations selected by Buyer, and (b) all other conditions that must
be approved, meet the legal requirements in effect on the date of this Offer to obtain a permit for a POWTS for use of the
Property as stated on lines 306-308. The POWTS (septic system) allowed by the written evidence must be one of
the POWTS that is approved by the State for use with the type of property identified at lines 306-308


E conventional in-ground; E mound; E at grade; E in-ground pressure distribution; E holding tank;


E other:
EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's) (Selle/s)


lõÑEl ("Buyer's" if neither is stricken) expense, copies of all public and private easements, covenants and restrictions
affecting the Property and a written determination by a qualified independent third party that none of these prohibit or
si nificantly delay or increase the costs of the proposed use or developme nt identified at lines 306-308


APPROVALS: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's)(seller's)f sJTiKE-oNEl("Buyer's"if
neither is stricken) expense, permits, approvals and licenses, as appropriate, or the final discretionary action by the
granting authority prior to the issuance of such permits, approvals and licenses, for the following items related to Buyer's
proposed use


(F ONF


UTILITIES: This Offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's)(Self€rts) ("Buyer's" if neither
is stricken) expense, written verification of the followi util connections at the listed locations (e.9., on the Property, at


the lot line, across the street, etc.) E electricity


E gAS ; E sewer ; E water
EtelePhone iEcable ,Eother-
l-l nccess ro pnopenry: rn¡s offer is contingent upon Buyer obtaining, at (Buyer's) (Sellels) ß-rlil<-NTl
("Buyer's" if neither is stricken) expense, written verification that there is legal vehicular accessto the Property from public


roads.
s¿o l;%l LAND USE APPROVAL: ThisOfferiscontingentupon Buyerobtaining, at(Buye/s)-(Settees) ("Buyer's" if
¡¿z neither is stricken) expense, a E rezoning; E conditional use permit; E license; E variance; tr building permit; tr
348 occupancy permit; E other , and delivering
s¿s written notice to Seller if the item cannot be obtained, all within days of acceptance for the Property for its proposed


350 use described at lines 306-308.
3s1 l;ãl MAP OF THE PROPERTY: This Offer is contingent upon (Buyer obtaining) (Seller providing)
ssz providing" if neither is stricken) a Map of the Property dated subsequent to the date of acceptance of this Offer prepared by a


rss registered land surveyor, within days of acceptance, at (Buyer's) (Seller's) ISTRIkTI¡E|("Seller's" if neither is stricken)


("Seller


3s4 expense. The map shall show minimum of acres, maximum of acres, the legal description of the
35s Property, the Property's boundaries and dimensions, visible encroachments upon the Property, the location of improvements,
356 if any, and:
tsz [STRIKE AND COMPLETE AS APPLICABLE] Additional map features which may be added include, but are not limited to:


sse staking of all corners of the Property; identifying dedicated and apparent streets; lot dimensions; total acreage or square
359 footage; easements or rights-of-way. CAUTION: Gonsider the cost and the need for map features bef9re selecting them.
360 Also consider the time required to obtain the map when setting the deadline. This contingency shall be deemed satisfied
361 unless Buyer, within five days of the earlier of: ('1) Buyer's receipt of the map; or (2) the deadline for delivery of said map,


soz delivers to Seller a copy of the map and a written notice which identifies: (1)the significant encroachment; (2) information


sos materially inconsistent with prior representations; or (3) failure to meet requirements stated within this contingency.
so+ Upon delivery of Buyer's notice, this Offer shall be null and void.


Produced w¡th zipForm@ by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen M¡le Road, Fraser, Mich¡gan 48026 w.zipLoq¡x.com 5649-1831 GIP-







365


396


366 figures, or allocation of acreage information, provided to Buyer by Seller or by a broker, may be approximate because of
goz rounding, formulas used or other reasons, unless verified by survey or other means.
368 CAUTION: Buyer should verify land dimensions, total square footage/acreage figures and allocation of acreage
soe information if material to Buyer's decision to purchase.
370


371 I HELD BY: Unless otheruise agreed, earnest money shall be paid to and held in the trust account of the listing broker
szz (Buyer's agent if Property is not listed or Seller's account if no broker is involved), until applied to the purchase price or
373 otherwise disbursed as provided in the Offer.
sz¿ GAUTION: Should persons other than a broker hold earnest money, an escrow agreement should be drafted by the
375 Part¡es or an attorney. lf someone other than Buyer makes payment of earnest money, consider a special
376 disbursement agreement.
377 . DISBURSEMENT: lf negotiations do not result in an accepted offer, the earnest money shall be promptly disbursed (after
378 clearance from payor's depository institution if earnest money is paid by check) to the person(s) who paid the earnest money.
szs At closing, earnest money shall be disbursed according to the closing statement. lf this Offer does not close, the earnest
3Bo money shall be disbursed according to a written disbursement agreement signed by all Parties to this Offer. lf said
381 disbursement agreement has not been delivered to broker within 60 days after the date set for closing, broker may disburse
sez the earnest money: (1) as directed by an attorney who has reviewed the transaction and does not represent Buyer or Seller;
oes (2) into a court hearing a lawsuit involving the earnest money and all Parties to this Offer; (3) as directed by court order; or (4)


384 any other disbursement required or allowed by law. Broker may retain legal services to direct disbursement per ('1) or to file an


ses interpleader action per (2) and broker may deduct from the earnest money any costs and reasonable attorneys fees, not to
sao exceed $250, prior to disbursement.
387 I LEGAL RIGHTS/ACTION: Broker's disbursement of earnest money does not determine the legal rights of the Parties in
ssa relation to this Offer. Buyer's or Seller's legal right to earnest money cannot be determined by broker. At least 30 days prior to
geg disbursement per (1) or (4) above, broker shall send Buyer and Seller notice of the disbursement by certified mail. lf Buyer or
390 Seller disagree with broker's proposed disbursement, a lawsuit may be filed to obtain a court order regarding disbursement.
3e1 Small Claims Court has jurisdiction over all earnest money disputes arising out of the sale of residential property with 1-4


sgz dwelling units and certain other earnest money disputes. Buyer and Seller should consider consulting attorneys regarding their
3s3 legal rights under this Offer in case of a dispute. Both Parties agree to hold the broker harmless from any liability for good faith
sg¿ disbursement of earnest money in accordance with this Offer or applicable Department of Regulation and Licensing
395 lations concernin earnest mon See Wis. Admin. Code Ch. RL 18.


Buyer and Seller authorize the agents of Buyer and Seller to: (i) distribute copies of the
sgz Offer to Buyer's lender, appraisers, title insurance companies and any other settlement service providers for the transaction as
sga defined by the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA); (ii) report sales and financing concession data to multiple
3e9 l¡sting service sold databases; and (iii) provide active listing, pending sale, closed sale and financing concession information
¿oo and data, and related information regarding seller contributions, incentives or assistance, and third party gifts, to appraisers


researchi co sales, market conditions


registered with the registry by contacting
http://www.widocoffenders.org or by telephone at


Page 7 of 10, WB-'13


Buyer acknowledges that any land dimensions, total square footage, acreage


and listings, upon inquiry.
You may obtain information about the sex offender registry and persons


the Wisconsin Department of Corrections on the lnternet at
(ô08) 240-5830.


401


402


403


404


Produc€d w¡th zipForm@ by zipLog¡x 18070 Fifte€n Mile Road, Fraser, l¡ichigan 48026 M.ziÞLogix.com 5649-1831 GIP-







Property Address: Lot 14 Stougrhton Business Pa:ckNorth. Stoughton. WI Page I of 10, WB-13


40s l;ãl SECONDARY OFFER: This Offer is secondary to a prior accepted offer. This Offer shall become primary upon delivery
of written notice to Buyer that this Offer is primary. Unless otherwise provided, Seller is not obligated to give Buyer notice prior
to any deadline, nor is any particular secondary buyer given the right to be made primary ahead of other secondary buyers.
Buyer may declare this Offer null and void by delivering written notice of withdrawal to Seller prior to delivery of Seller's notice
that this Offer is primary. Buyer may not deliver notice of withdrawal earlier than -. days after acceptance of this Offer. All
other Offer deadlines which are run from acceptance shall run from the time this Offer becomes primary.


"Time is of the Essence" as to: earnest payment(s); (2) binding acceptance; (3)


and all other dates and Deadlines in thisoccupancy; (4) date of closing; (5) contingency Deadlines
Offer except:
lf "Time is of the Essence" applies to a date or Deadline, failure to perform by the exact date or Deadline is a breach of
contract. lf "Time is of the Essence" does not apply to a date or Deadline, then performance within a reasonable time of the
date or Deadline is allowed before a breach occurs.


r CONVEYANCE OF TITLE: Upon payment of the purchase price, Seller shall convey the Property by warranty deed
(or trustee's deed if Seller is a trust, personal representative's deed if Seller is an estate or other conveyance as
provided herein), free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except: municipal and zoning ordinances and agreements
entered under them, recorded easements for the distribution of utility and municipal services, recorded building and use
restrictions and covenants, present uses of the Property in violation of the foregoing disclosed in Seller's disclosure report and
in this Offer, general taxes levied in the year of closing and See Addendurn A


406


407


408


409


410


411


412


413


414


415


416


417


418


419


420


421


422


423


424


425


426


¿zz which constitutes merchantable title for purposes of this transaction. Seller shall complete and execute the documents
428 necessary to record the conveyance at Seller's cost and pay the Wisconsin Real Estate Transfer Fee.
42s a TITLE EVIDENCE: Seller shall give evidence of title in the form of an owner's policy of title insurance in the amount of the
+so purchase price on a current ALTA form issued by an insurer licensed to write title insurance in Wisconsin. Seller shall pay all
431 costs of providing title evidence to Buyer. Buyer shall pay all costs of providing title evidence required by Buyer's le!9sl.
432 | GAP ENDoRSEMENT: Seller shall provide a "gap" endorsement or equivalent gap coverage at (Selle/s) (Buyer's) lffilK-trl
+ss lO-NiEl ("Seller's" if neither stricken) cost to provide coverage for any liens or encumbrances first filed or recorded after the
¿s¿ effective date of the title insurance commitment and before the deed is recorded, subject to the title insurance policy
¿ss exclusions and exceptions, provided the title company will issue the endorsement. lf a gap endorsement or equivalent gap
436 coverage is not available, Buyer may give written notice that title is not acceptable for closing (see lines 442-449).
437 a PROVISION OF MERCHANTABLE TITLE: Forpurposes of closing, title evidence shall be acceptable if the required title
438 insurance commitment is delivered to Buyer's attorney or Buyer not more than 


- 
days after acceptance ("'15" if left blank),


¿sg showing title to the Property as of a date no more than 15 days before delivery of such title evidence to be merchantable per
¿¿o lines 418-427 , subject only to liens which will be paid out of the proceeds of closing and standard title insurance requirements
441 and exceptions, as appropriate.
442 | TITLE NOT ACCEPTABLE FOR CLOSING: lf title is not acceptable for closing, Buyer shall notify Seller in writing of
443 objections to title within _ days ("15" if left blank) after delivery of the title commitment to Buyer or Buyer's attorney. ln
¿¿¿ such event, Seller shall have a reasonable time, but not exceeding _ days ("5" if left blank) from Buyer's delivery of the
44s notice stating title objections, to deliver notice to Buyer stating Seller's election to remove the objections by the time set for
++o closing. ln the event that Seller is unable to remove said objections, Buyer may deliver to Seller written notice waiving the
++z objections, and the time for closing shall be extended accordingly. lf Buyer does not waive the objections, Buyer shall deliver
¿¿e written notice of termination and this Offer shall be null and void. Providing title evidence acceptable for closing does not
++s extinguish Seller's obligations to give merchantable title to Buyer.
4s0 I SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: Special assessments, if any, levied orforworkactually commenced prior to the date of this
4s1 Offer shall be paid by Seller no later than closing. All other special assessments shall be paid by Buyer.
452
453
454
455
456
457


458


459
460
461
462
463
464


Produced w¡th zipForm@ by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen M¡16 Road, Fras€r, M¡chigan 48026 w.zipLogix com 5649-t 83 l GrP-







Page I of 10, WB-13


o6u [EEruEIl Seller and Buyer each have the legal duty to use good faith and due diligence in completing the terms and
¿oo conditions of this Offer. A material failure to perform any obligation under this Offer is a default which may subject the
¿oz defaulting party to liability for damages or other legal remedies.
468 lf Buyer defaults, Seller may:
46s (1) sue for specific performance and request the earnest money as partial payment of the purchase price; or
470 (2) terminate the Offer and have the option to: (a) request the earnest money as liquidated damages; or (b) sue for
471 actual damages.
472 lf Seller defaults, Buyer may:
473 (1) sueforspecific performance; or
474 (2) terminate the Offer and request the return of the earnest money, sue for actual damages, or both.
475 ln addition, the Parties may seek any other remedies available in law or equity.
¿zo The Parties understand that the availability of any judicial remedy will depend upon the circumstances of the situation and the
¿zz discretion of the courts. lf either Party defaults, the Parties may renegotiate the Offer or seek nonjudicial dispute resolution
a7s instead of the remedies outlined above. By agreeing to binding arbitration, the Parties may lose the right to litigate in a court of
tzg law those disputes covered by the arbitration agreement.
¿eo NOTE: lF ACCEPTED, THIS OFFER CAN CREATE A LEGALLY ENFORCEABLE CONTRAGT. BOTH PARTIES SHOULD
481 READ THIS DOCUMENT CAREFULLY. BROKERS MAY PROVIDE A GENERAL EXPLANATION OF THE PROVISIONS
¿EZ QF THE OFFER BUT ARE PROHIBITED BY LAW FROM GIVING ADVICE OR OPINIONS CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL
483 RIGHTS UNDER THIS OFFER OR HOW TITLE SHOULD BE TAKEN AT CLOSING. AN ATTORNEY SHOULD BE
¿E¿ GONSULTED IF LEGAL ADVICE IS NEEDED.
485 This Offer, including any amendments to it, contains the entire agreement of the Buyer and Seller
+ao regarding the transaction. All prior negotiations and discussions have been merged into this Offer. This agreement binds and
¿ez inures to the benefit of the Parties to this Offer and their successors in interest.
488 Buyer may only conduct inspections or tests if specific contingencies are included as a part of
489 this Offer. An "inspection" is defined as an observation of the Property which does not include an appraisal or testing of the
4e0 Property, other than testing for leaking carbon monoxide, or testing for leaking LP gas or natural gas used as a fuel source,
491 which are hereby authorized. A "test" is defined as the taking of samples of materials such as soils, water, air or building
+sz malerials from the Property and the laboratory or other analysis of these materials. Seller agrees to allow Buyer's inspectors,
493 testers and appraisers reasonable access to the Property upon advance notice, if necessary to satisfy the contingencies in
¿g¿ this Offer. Buyer and licensees may be present at all inspections and testing. Except as otherwise provided, Seller's
¿ss authorization for inspections does not authorize Buyer to conduct testing of the Property.
¿so NOTE: Any contingency authorizing testing should specify the areas of the Property to be tested, the purpose of the
497 test, (e.g.,todetermineif environmental contamination is present), any limitations on Buyer's testing and any other
¿ee material terms of the contingency.
499 Buyer agrees to promptly restore the Property to its original condition after Buyer's inspections and testing are completed
soo unless otherwise agreed to with Seller. Buyer agrees to promptly provide copies of all inspection and testing reports to Seller.
501 Seller acknowledges that certain inspections or tests may detect environmental pollution which may be required to be reported
soz to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.


Produced with zipForm@ by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, M¡chigan 48026 w.zioLooix.com 5649-1831 GIP-







503


504


505


506


507


508


509


510


511


512


513


514


515


516


517


518


519


520


521


522


523


524


525


526


527


528


529


530


531


532


533


534


Property Address: Lot 14 Stouc¡hton i nass ÞarkNorth - Storrctrton, IùT Page '10 of 10, WB-1 3


l"%l l¡¡SpeGTlON cONTINGENGY: This contingency only authorizes inspections, not testing (see lines 488-502). Thls Offer
is contingent upon a qualified independent inspector(s) conducting an inspection(s), of the Property which discloses no
Defects. This Offer is further contingent upon a qualified independent inspector or independent qualified third party performing
an inspection of
(list any Property feature(s) to be separately inspected, e.9., dumpsite, etc.) which discloses no Defects. Buyer shall order the
inspection(s) and be responsible for all costs of inspection(s), Buyer may have follow-up inspections recommended in a
written report resulting from an authorized inspection performed provided they occur prior to the deadline specified at line 513.


lnspection(s) shall be performed by a qualified independent inspector or independent qualified third party.


CAUTION: Buyer should provide sufficient time for the primary inspection and/or any specialized inspection(s), as
well as any follow-up inspection(s).
This contingency shall be deemed satisfied unless Buyer, within _ days of acceptance, delivers to Seller a copy of the written
inspection report(s)and awritten notice listing the Defect(s)identified in those report(s) towhich Buyerobjects (Notice of Defects).
GAUTION: A proposed amendment is not a Notice of Defects and will not satisfy this notice requirement.
Forthe purposes of this contingency, Defects (see lines 287-289) do not include conditions the nature and extent of which the
Buyer had actual knowledge or written n


r RIGHT TO CURE: Seller (shall)(shall
Seller has the right to cure, Seller may


this Offer.
("shall" if neither is stricken) have a right to cure the Defects. lf


otice before ni


not)
co gency by: (1)delivering written notice to Buyerwithin 10 days of


Buyer's delivery of the Notice of Defects stating Seller's election to cure Defects, (2) curing the Defects in a good and
workmanlike mannerand (3) delivering to Buyer a written report detailing the work done within 3 days prior to closing. This
Offer shall be null and void if Buyer makes timely delivery of the Notice of Defects and written inspection report(s) and: ('1)


Seller does not have a right to cure or (2) Seller has a right to cure but: (a) Seller delivers written notice that Seller will not cure
or (b)
f*l


Seller does not timely deliver the written notice of election to cure
ADDENDA: The attached is/are made part of this Offer


sss This Offer was drafted by [Licensee and Firm]


536 on


ssz (x)
538


(x)


Buyer's Signature A Print Name Here ) GrP-sÈoughton LLC Date a


539


540 Buyer's Signature Å Print Name Here ) by Rona1d Grosso Date Ä


541 Broker acknowledges receipt of earnest money as per line 10 of the above Offer


542 Broker (By)
543 SELLER ACCEPTS THIS OFFER. THE WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS MADE IN THIS OFFER
S¿¿ SURVIVE CLOSING AND THE CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY. SELLER AGREES TO CONVEY THE PROPERTY ON
545 THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS SET FORTH HEREIN AND ACKNOWLEDGES RECE¡PT OF A COPY OF THIS OFFER.


(x)
Seller'sSignature Â PrintNameHere )Donna 01son, I'fayor Date 


^
(x)


546


547


548


549


550


551


552


553


Seller's Signature Å Print Name Here ) Laurie Sullivan, r'inance Dir


This Offer was presented to Seller by [Licensee and Firm]


on


Date Â


at a.m./p.m


This Offer is countered [See attached counter]
Seller lnitials a Date À Seller lnitials A DãieTThis Offer is rejected


Produced with zipForm@ by zipLogix 18070 F¡fteen Mile Road, Fraser, l\¡ich¡gan 48026 w.zipLoqix.com s649-l 83 I GIP-







ADDENDUM A TO WB-13


VACANT LAND OFFER TO PURCHASE


SELLER: CITY OF STOUGHTON


BUYER: GIP-STOUGHTON LLC


PROPERTY: LOT T4, BUSINESS PARK NORTH


1. Addendum L This Addendum A to WB-13 Vacant Land Offer to Purchase (the


"Addendum A") forms apart of the V/B-13 Vacant Land Offer to Purchase (the "Offer")
to which it is attached. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this
Addendum A and the terms and conditions of the Offer, the terms and conditions of this
Addendum A shall govern and prevail.


2. Property Desæiption. The Property is described as follows


Lot 14, Stoughton Business Park North, City of Stoughton, Dane County,
Wisconsin


3. Property Size. Lot 14 consists of 2.247 acres


4. Declaration of Protective Covenants. Buyer expressly acknowledges that the


Property is subject to the Declaration of Protective Covenants and Restrictions, Plat of
Stoughton Business Park North, Dane County, Wisconsin, TIF District III, recorded with
the Dane County Register of Deeds Office on March 31, 1994 as Document No.
2588027, pages V27005P 60 through V27005P 74 (the "Declaration of Protective


Covenants"), and that Buyer has received a copy of the Declaration of Protective
Covenants.


5. AS-IS Condition Seller is selling the Property in "AS-IS" condition and is not


making any warranties or representationsioncerning the condition of the Property.


6. (Jnderground Utilities. If it is necessary to do so, Buyer shall be responsible for
the cost to relocate arly existing underground utilities to accommodate Buyer's
development or use of the Property.


L:\DOCS\005649\00 1 83 l\DOCS\3 8E6502.DOC
lll9l5l535







7. Seller's Repurchase Ríghts. The Option to Repurchase Property Agreement,
attached hereto as Attachment A, shall govern the terms and conditions of the


repurchasing of the Property by Seller. The parties shall execute the Option to
Repurchase Property Agreement at or before the closing on the Property,


8. Tax Agreement. The Tax Agreement, attached hereto as Attachment B, shall


govern the terms and conditions of the preservation of the taxable status of the Property.


The parties shall execute the Tax Agreement at or before the closing on the Property.


g. Tax Increment Guarantee. Buyer shall make improvements to the Property so that
the total assessed value of the Property (land and improvements) is not less than


5393,225 on or before January 1,2071 and remains not less than 5393,225 until City of
Stoughton Tax Increment District No. 3 is closed. If in any year beginning January l,
2017, the total assessed value of the Property (land and improvements) is less than


5393,225, the Buyer shall, for the tax year applicable to such assessed value, pay to Seller


the difference in tax revenue between the Actual Tax Increment generated by the


Property and the Tax Increment that would have been generated by the Property if the


total assessed value of the Property (land and improvements) was 5393,225.


10. Conservation Easement. The warranty deed conveying the Property to the Buyer
will include a reservation for the benefit of the City of a Conservation Easement


providing as follows:


a. The Seller reserves a perpetual conservancy easement over the Property
desuibed as follows:


That portion of the Property described by the following area:


A 75 foot wide strip of land being part of lots 12, 13, and 14 of the plat of
Stoughton Business Park North described as follows:


Beginning at the northeast corner of lot 12 thence 502"51'48"8 488.07 feet;


thence S45"36'08'V/ 156.68 feet; thence S24"06'08"'W 290.11 feet; thence


N28'30'57"W 94.39 feet; thence N24"06'08"8 247.04 feet; thence


N45"36'08"E 137.16 feet; thence N02'51'48"W 454.33 feet; thence


N87"09'07"E 75.00 feet to the point of beginning.


b. The Seller reserves the easement for the purpose of maintaining the land


within the easem ent area in its natural state as of the date listed below. Neither
Buyer nor future purchasers of the Properfy shall disturb land or remove trees


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 I \DOCS\38E6502,DOC
1119151535 2







lying in or located within the easement area without prior written approval by the


Seller.


c. This grant and provisions of this easement shall constitute a covenant


running with the land for the benefit of the Seller, its successors, and assigns. This


easement shall be modified or terminated only by action of the Seller.


1 1. Third-Party Sales. Buyer and Seller agree that the Property is located in the City's
Tax Increment District No. 3. Buyer acknowledges that it purchased the Property at a
discount. Buyer shall not sell, assign or convey the Property to a third party prior to
completion of all improvements on the Property in accordance with the site plan


approved by the City Planning Commission.


12. Offer and Addendum A Run with the Land. The Offer, the Addendum A, and the


Agreements attached hereto shall survive the closing on the sale of the Property, shall run
with the lands described herein, and shall be binding on Buyer and Seller and on any and


all of their heirs, successors and assigns, and on any and all of the respective successor


legal or beneficial owners of all or any portion of the Property.


13. Recording. Upon closing, Seller shall have recorded in the Dane County Register


of Deeds Office the following executed documents, in this order: the Warranty Deed to


the Property, the Offer and Addendum A, the Option to Repurchase Property Agreement,
and the Tax Agreement.


fSignature page follows.]


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 I \DOCS\38E6502.DOC
I I 19151535


aJ







SELLER:
CTTY OF:STOUGHTON


DonnaOlson" Mayor


Laurie Sullivan, Finance Diresto¡


BUYER:
GIP-STOUGHTON LLC


Ronald.G.rosso,


A-ttachment A - Option to Repurchase P.loper-ty Agreernent
Attactrment B - TaxAgree.rnent


L:\DO€S\O05649\0ü1 *31Iü¡OCS\3 SË65 02.DOC.
I 119151535 4







Attachment A - Option to Repurchase Property Agreement


LTDOCS\005649\00 I 83 l\DOCS\38E6502.DOC
il19151535 5







OPTION TO REPURCHASE PROPERTY
AGREEMENT


THIS OPTION TO REPURCHASE PROPERTY
AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is executed on the
day of 20-, by and between GIP-
STOUGHTON LLC ("GIP") and the CITY OF


STOUGHTON (the "City").


RBcrrals


A The City and GIP executed an Offer to Purchase and


Addendum A (the "Offer to Purchase") governing
the terms and conditions of the sale of the following
described property from the City to GIP:


LìDOCS\005649\00 I 83 I \A,GREE\3 8E6703.DOCX
I I l9l5l4l0


Matthew P. Dregne
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
P.O. Box 1784
Madison, WI 53701-7184


P.I.N


B


C


28 1-0s I 1 -05 1 -0 144-3


Lot 14, Stoughton Business Park North, City
of Stoughton, Dane County,
Wisconsin (the "Property").


The City and GIP desire to set forth terms upon which the City shall have the


option to repurchase the Property from GIP.


The City's sale of the Property to GIP is conditioned on the parties executing and


recording this Agreement.


Acn¡,evr,Nr


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals, and the mutual promises,


obligations and benefits provided under this Agreement and the Offer to Purchase, receipt


and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the City and GIP agree as follows:


1. Recitals Incorporated. The recitals stated above are incorporated in this


Agreement by reference


2. Citv's Repurchas e Rishts The City shall have the right to purchase the


Property for $ 52,804.50


If GIP fails to acquire a building permit from the City within six


months from the date on which GIP purchases the Property from the


City; or


a.







If GIP fails to commence construction of a principal structure on the


Property within seven months from the date on which GIP purchases


the Property from the City. For purposes of this Agreement,
"commence construction" means that GIP has completed the


foundation for a building in accordance with a site plan approved by
the City Planning Commission.


The City shall notiff GIP in writing if it intends to exercise its option to purchase


the Property.


3. Term of the Agreement. This Agreement shall expire when GIP acquires a


building permit from the City and commences construction of a principal structure on the


Property in accordance with paragraph2 above.


4. Repurchase Transaction. If the City provides written notice of its intent to


exercise its option to purchase the Property, GIP shall, not more than thirty (30) days


after receiving the City's written notice (or at such other time and place as the Parties


may mutually agree), convey the Property to the City by warranty deed in fee simple, free


and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except the liens and encumbrances applicable to


the Property on (insert day before closìng) 20-. Further,


GIP shall give evidence of title in the form of an owner's policy of title insurance in the


amount of the purchase price on a cunent ALTA form issued by an insurer licensed to


write title insurance in Wisconsin. GIP shall pay all costs of providing title evidence'


5. Remedies. The City shall have all remedies provided by this Agreement,


and all remedies provided at law or in equity, necessary to cure any default or remedy


any damages under this Agreement. GIP expressly acknowledges that the City shall


have the remedy of specif,rc performance if GIP breaches this Agreement.


6 Runs with the This Agreement shall run with the land


and shall be binding on GIP and on any and all of GIP's heirs, successors and assigns,


and on any and all of the respective successor legal or beneficial owners of all or any


portion of the Property.


7. Recording. The City may record this Agreement with the Dane County


Register of Deeds Office. GIP shall pay the cost of recording this Agreement.


8. Entire A Amendments. This Agreement, the Offer to Purchase,


and the Tax Agreement encompass the entire agreement of the parties. Any amendment


to this Agreement shall be made in writing, signed by both parties.


9. Severability. If any parï of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or


unenforceable, the rest of the Agreement shall remain in effect.


b


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 1\AGREE\3886703.DOCX
I I t 9151410


2







10. Waiver. No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be deemed a


continuing waiver of that breach or a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement,


1 l. Interpretation of Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement
is the product of joint negotiations. If any dispute arises concerning the interpretation of
this Agreement, neither party shall be deemed the drafter of this Agreement for purposes


of its interpretation.


12. Notices. Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be


deemed given when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the party af


the address stated below or when actually received by the party, whichever is first. The


addresses are:


To City: City Clerk
City of Stoughton
381 East Main Street
Stoughton, WI 53589


To Owner: Ronald Grosso
GlP-Stoughton LLC
400 West Oak Street
Cottage Grove, WI53527


Addresses may be changed by notice given in the manner provided in this section


13. Governing Law. This Agreement has been negotiated and signed in the


State of 'Wisconsin and shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced in accordance with
the laws of the United States and the State of Wisconsin.


[Signature page follows.]


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 1\AGREE\38E6703.DOCX
I I l9l5l4l0


a
J







IN \MITNESS WHEREOF, the partie-s have,executed this Agreement as of the


date first set forth above.


CITY:
Ciff of Stoughton


Donna Olson, Mayor


Lana kupf, Clerk


Approved as to form:


Matthe¡u P. Dregne,
City Attorney


OWIIER;
GlP-,stoughton tLC


By
Ronald Grosso,


Thís tnstrwmen:t drøJted b1t:


Matthew P. Dre-gne
,Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
P.O. Bo.x 1784
Madison,'WI 53701
6A8./256-0226


I-:\DOC5\û05649\00 1 83 I \AG¡IEËB886703.DOCX 4
1119151410







Attachment B - Tax Agreement


L:\DOCS\005649\00 1 83 I \DOCS\38E6502.DOC
il19151535 6







TAX AGREEMENT


THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the


day of 20- (the


"Agreement"), by and between the CITY OF
STOUGHTON, a 'Wisconsin municipal corporation (the


"City"), and GIP-STOUGHTON LLC (the "Owner"), a


Wisconsin limited liability company.


REcrrars


A. The Owner is the sole owner of the following
described property (the "Property") in the City of
Stoughton, more particularly described as:


Lot 14, Stoughton Business Park North, City
of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 l\AGREE\38E6729.DOCX
I I lgl5l537


Matthew P. Dregne
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
P.O. Box 1784
Madison, WI53701-7184


P,I.N,


281-0s1 1-051-0144-3


B


C


The Owner and the City executed an Offer to Purchase and Addendum A (the


"Offer to Purchase") governing the terms and conditions of the sale of the


Property from the City to the Owner.


The Owner and the City wish to enter into this Agreement concerning preservation


of the taxable status of the Property while City of Sto ughton Tax Increment


District No. 3 exists.


The City's sale of the Properf¡z to the Owner is conditioned on the parties


executing and recording this Agreement


The City has provided and shall continue to provide public health, safety, fire and


police protection, streets and street maintenance, snow removal, and other


governmental services ("Municipal Services") with respect to the Property that are


funded by property taxes.


AcRBevBNr


NO'W, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals, and the mutual promises,


obligations and benefits provided under this Agreement and the Offer to Purchase, the


receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Owner and the City agree


as follows:


D


E


l







1. Recitals The recitals stated above are incorporated in this


Agreement by reference.


2. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms, when having


an initial capital letter, shall mean:


a. Equalized Value. Shall have the meaning set forth in section 6 of
this Agreement.


b. Tax ental Base. Shall mean the value of the Property, as


equalized by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue, on the date as


of which Tax Increment District No. 3 was created by the City.


Value Increment. Shall mean the Equalized Value of the Property in
any year minus the Tax Incremental Base.


3. Representations and Warranties bv the Owner The Owner represents and


warrants that the Owner: (1) is a limited liabilþ company organized and existing under


the laws of the State of Wisconsin; (2) is in good standing with the Wisconsin


Department of Financial Institutions; (3) has taken all action necessary to enter into this


Agreement; (4) has duly authorized the individual signers of this Agreementto do so;


and (5) is the sole owner of the Property, in fee simple.


4. Tax Status of the Prooertv While City of Stoughton Tax Increment


DistrictNo. 3 exists:


a. The Owner shall take all reasonable actions to assure that the


Property shall not be exempt from property taxation, in full or in
part, except as required by law.


b. The Owner shall not submit any request or application for property


tax exemption of the Property, in full or in part, challenge the status


of the Property as fully subject to property taxation, or seek any


ruling by a court or any statutory change that would entitle the


Property to exemption, in full or part.


After City of Stoughton Tax Increment District No. 3 closes, the Property shall be


subject to property taxation unless the Property or parts thereof become exempt


from taxation pursuant to applicable'Wisconsin Statutes'


c.


c1 B


Citv of Stou ton Tax Increment District No. 3 Exists.


Stoughton Tax Increment District No. 3 exists, if in any year (


Property is exempt from property taxation, in full or in part,


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 1\AGREE\38F,67 29DOCX
I I t91514',16


5.P
During the period that City of


the "Valuation Year") the
the Owner shall pay the


2







City, as a payment for Municipal Services provided by the City with respect to the


Property ("Payment for Municipal Services"), the difference between (1) the amount of
property taxes, if any, on the Property, actually received by the City from Owner for the


Valuation Year, and (2) the amount of property taxes on the Property that the City would
have received for the Valuation Year if the Property were fully subject to property


taxation. The City shall send the Owner an invoice for the Payment for Municipal
Services due. One-half of the Payment for Municipal Services shall be due on January


31 of the year after the Valuation Year. The balance of the Payment for Municipal
Services shall be due on July 31 of the year aftr.r the Valuation Year. Each payment


shall be deemed made when actually received by the City. Any payment made by check


shall not be deemed made until the check has cleared all banks. Any amount due that is


not paid on time shall bear interest in the same manner and at the same rate as provided
by law for unpaid property taxes. The Payment for Municipal Services shall constitute
payment for Municipal Services provided with respect to the Property during the


Valuation Year. The City and the Owner acknowledge and agree that this Payment for
Municipal Services would constitute a reasonable and appropriate means of carrying out


the intent of the parties and would fairly and reasonably compensate the City for the


Municipal Services provided during the Valuation Year.


6. Calculation of Prooertv Taxes If Prooertv Were Not Exempt. V/hile
City of Stoughton Tax Increment District No. 3 exists, if it becomes necessary to


calculate the amount of property taxes on the Property that the City would have received


if the Property were fully subject to property taxation, this amount shall be calculated as


follows: (1) The fair market value of the Property as of January 1 of the Valuation Year


shall be determined, in the same manner as provided by law for property that is fully
taxable, by the City Assessor or, if the City Assessor is unable or unwilling to do so, by


a competent and impartial appraiser selected by the City in its sole discretion. (2) The


fair market value, as so determined, shall be divided by the average assessment ratio for
the year for property in the City, as determined by the Wisconsin Department of
Revenue (for purposes of this Agreement the result shall be the "Equalized Value").
(3) The Equalized Value shall be multiplied by the total "interim rate" from the


Wisconsin Department of Revenue form PC-202 for the applicable year. A copy of
form PC-202 is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The interim rate is obtained by dividing
the combined levies from each taxing jurisdiction (the sum of the apportioned levies in


column A on form PC-202) by the total equalized value of all taxable properfy in the


City, excluding the value increment of all tax incremental districts in the City (the


amount used in column B on form PC-202).


on. The amount of anv
Payment for Municipal Services, determined as provided in this Agreement, shall be


binding on the parties unless determined to be excessive in an arbitration proceeding


conducted in accordance with chapter 788, Wisconsin Statutes, or any successor statute,


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 I \AGREE\3 8E.67 29.DOCX
1Il9ls1416


7. B


J







by a single arbitrator, chosen by mutual agreement of the Parties or, if they do not agree,


by the Circuit Court for Dane County, Wisconsin, on application of either patty. The


arbitrator shall be an assessor or appraiser licensed by the State of V/isconsin with at


least ten years experience in the valuation of commercial property. Any demand for
arbitration shall be made within thirty days aÍter an invoice for Payment of Municipal
Services is sent by the City to the Owner. If a demand for arbitration is not made within
that time, the parties shall be deemed to have waived arbitration. The party demanding


arbitration shall bear all the costs of arbitration. Chapter 788, 'Wisconsin Statutes, or any


successor statute, shall govern the arbitration proceeding, except that the Owner and the


City each waive any right to trial by jury. Any other dispute between the parties arising


out of, related to, or connected with this Agreement shall be arbitrated in the same


manner.


8 Soecial Asses Tf Anv Reouired Pavment for Services Is


Not Timely Made Any Payment for Municipal Services that is not made when due


shall entitle the City to levy a special assessment against the Property for the amount


due, plus interest. The Owner hereby consents to the levy of any such special


assessment, and pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 66.0703(7)(b), waives any right to notice of or


any hearing on any such special assessment.


g. lnsurance. The Owner shall maintain insurance coverage on the Property,


including all improvements, insuring against loss or damage in amounts sufficient to
rebuild or replace the improvements constructed on the Property. If any part of the


improvements constructed on the Property are damaged or destroyed while Tax


Increment District No. 3 exists, the proceeds of insurance coverage on the Property shall


be used to repair or replace any damaged or destroyed part of the improvements.


10. Indemnification. The Owner shall indemniff the City for all amounts of
attorneys' fees and expenses and expert fees and expenses incurred in enforcing this


Agreement.


11. Remedies The City shall have all remedies provided by this Agreement,


and provided at law or in equity, necessary to cure any default or remedy any damages


under this agreement. Remedies shall include, but are not limited to, special


assessments under section 9 of this Agreement, indemnification under section l1 of this


Agreement, and all remedies available at law or in equity.


12. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date


the Agreement is signed by both parties and shall continue until City of Stoughton Tax


Increment District No. 3 is closed.


13. Successors Assisns. This Agreement is binding on the successors and


assigns of the parties, including, but not limited to, any subsequent owner of the


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 I \AGREE\3886729.DOCX
I r l9l5l4l6 4







Property, any part of the Property, or any real property interest in the Property or any
part of the Property. If at any time the Property has more than one owner, any Payment
for Municipal Services due under this Agreement for any Valuation Year shall be


allocated among the owners in proportion to the fair market value of their property
interests as of January 1 of the Valuation Year, as determined under section 6 of this
Agreement.


14. Recording. The City may record this Agreement with the Dane County
Register of Deeds Office. The Owner shall pay the cost of recording this Agreement.


15. Entire Agreement: Amendments. This Agreement, the Offer to Purchase,


and the Option to Repurchase Property Agreement encompass the entire agreement of
the parties. Any amendment to this Agreement shall be made in writing, signed by both
parties.


16. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or
unenforceable, the rest of the Agreement shall remain in effect.


17. Waiver. No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be deemed a
continuing waiver of that breach or a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement.


18. Interpretation of Agreement. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement
is the product ofjoint negotiations. If any dispute arises concerning the interpretation of
this Agreement, neither party shall be deemed the drafter of this Agreement for purposes


of its interpretation.


19. Notices. Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be


deemed given when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, to the party at


the address stated below or when actually received by the party, whichever is first. The
addresses are:


To City City Clerk
City of Stoughton
381 East Main Street
Stoughton, IVI 53589


To Owner: Ronald Grosso
GlP-Stoughton LLC
400 West Oak Street
Cottage Grove, WI53527


Addresses may be changed by notice given in the manner provided in this section.


L:\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 I \AGREE\38E6729.DOCX
1II9t5l4l6 5







20. Governing Law. This Agreemont has been negotiated and signed in the


State of 'Wisconsin arrd shatl be governed, interpreted, and enforced in accordance with
the laws of the United States and the State of Wisconsin.


IN \[/ITI\IESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the


date fust set forth above.


CITY:
City of Stoughton


By
Donna Olson, Mayor


By
LanaK¡opf, Clerk


Approved as to form:


Ivlatthew P. Dreg¡re
City Attorney


OWNER:
GlP-Stoughton LLC


By
Ronald Grosso,


Exhibit A - Wisconsin Departme-nt of Revenue Form PC-202


Tkis instrumercf drafied y:
lvlatthew P. Dregne
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
P.O. Box 1784
Madison, \VI 53701
6A81256-0226


6L:\DOC3\005649\00 I 831 \AGREE\38E6l29.DOCX
1 1191 51416







Exhibit A
Wisconsin Department of Revenue Form PC-202


þ
t¡Ju
tr, 9võ
M.E
oË
=.:þËZE
Ul 3¡5ãtr;
É.Ê(J3
ãE
X
F


(o
Õ
c.l


e
o
c\t


u o


oÀ


L;\DOCS\005649\00 I 83 l\AGREE\38F;6729.DOCX
1119151543


Dã ç


ñ€' âoE


øe
Eo
f


Ð


.p
o
tr:
È
o


5


d


ã
ô
tr
Ë
.N


5
tiJ


oo


!t


t0


36


õE2U


c
o
6
E


:rQs
o
ño
c
fL


t,.
3-,x
d-


Jla
ø.9


ob
ii .qyc


9Ë
.'¿ A
f- t-


7





		9-R-2-2016-Resolution to sell Lot 14 Business Park North.pdf

		GIP-Lot 14 Sale.pdf

		GIP-Stoughton Offer_001.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to allow the use of an outdoor furnace at 556 E 


 Main Street, to burn only clean wood, until May 1, 2016. 


 
Committee Action: Public Safety recommends approval 3-2  
 
Fiscal Impact: None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-3-2016 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 12, 2016 


 


WHEREAS, on May 12, 2015 the Common Council approved to create an ordinance relating to 


Municipal Fire Prevention and Protection, disallowing the use of outdoor furnaces with the City limits, 


and 


 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Planning department sent two letters to Chris Overson at 556 E Main St to 


notify him of the ordinance changes, and  


 


WHEREAS, Mr. Overson requested to discuss the use of his outdoor furnace as he felt it met all of the 


exception requirements in O-6-2015 with the Public Safety Committee, and 


 


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on December 16, 2015 and decided that Mr. Overson be 


allowed to use his outdoor furnace until May 1, 2016, due to a discrepancy on whether the furnace’s 


chimney met the 20 foot minimum requirement at the time the ordinance was adopted and that he only 


be allowed to burn clean wood, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 


hereby directed and authorized to allow the use of an outdoor furnace at 556 E Main Street, to burn only 


clean wood, until May 1, 2016. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
 







1


Michael Stacey


From: Scott Wegner
Sent: Thursday, December 31, 2015 7:59 PM
To: Michael Stacey
Cc: FireDept; Rodney J. Scheel
Subject: Outdoor Stove


Hi Mike. FYI: Received 2 complaints today about smoke condition about 5:45 pm 12/30/15 in the area of 500 block of East Main St. One was a
resident in the area that said the smoke was really bad and clinging to the ground. The other was a motorist that traveled thru the area and said the
smoke was thick and thought about calling 911 but knew what the smoke was from and didn't think it would help. Both were in the area about the
same time. SFD has also documented 2 other occasions where the smoke has been obscuring Hillside Ave, the depot area and vicinity of IKI and
Coopers Causeway at Ridge St. The outdoor wood stove seems to be only operating occasionally. Sincerely Scott Wegner


Sent from my U.S. Cellular® Smartphone



















Image capture: Aug 2011 © 2015 Google


Page 1 of 2584 E Main St - Google Maps



mstacey

Text Box

August 2011



mstacey

Line







1


Michael Stacey


From: Mark Miller
Sent: Tuesday, January 05, 2016 1:32 PM
To: Michael Stacey
Cc: Scott Wegner
Subject: Overson's wood Burner
Attachments: 20151222_130653_resized (2).jpg; 20151222_140705_000_resized (2).jpg; 20160104_181827_resized (2).jpg


Good afternoon Mike


On 1-4-16 about 6:00 P.M. we were at the fire station for a meeting and we could smell wood burning that was coming in from the HVAC unit so I walk outside
and the smoke coming from the Overson wood burner that when you looked down to the tracks all you could see was smoke.


On 12-28-15 I was inspecting IKI and the smoke was coming down to IKI.


Mark A Miller
Deputy Fire Chief / Fire Marshal
401 E Main Street
Stoughton WI 53589
mmiller@ci.stoughton.wi.us
Station 608-873-7218
Cell 680-501-9811
Fax 608-873-6695



















1


Michael Stacey


From: Lisa Reeves [lreeves004@gmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 05, 2016 4:05 PM
To: Michael Stacey
Subject: Fwd: Outdoor Furnace


---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Lisa Reeves <lreeves004@gmail.com>
Date: Tue, Jan 5, 2016 at 3:48 PM
Subject: Outdoor Furnace
To: mstacey@cistoughton.wi.us
Cc: Donna Olson <dolson@ci.stoughton.wi.us>, MEngelberger@ci.stoughton.wi.us


I ran this by Mike Engelberger, and he suggested I contact you with my concern.


I understand outdoor wood burning furnaces were grandfathered in, but I am 99% sure that the business behind the chamber building is not just
burning wood. Yesterday morning when I went by, there was thick smoke pouring from the exhaust pipe and the fumes were noxious.
This has been an ongoing problem with this company during cold weather.


Thanks in advance for your help in making sure they comply and any feedback you can provide.
Lisa Reeves
708 East Main Street







Lana Kropf 


From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 


Michael Stacey 
Wednesday, January 06, 2016 7:25 AM 
Rodney J. Scheel 
FW: Outdoor Furnace 


FYI 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


City of Stoughton 


381 E. Main Street 


Stoughton, WI. 53589 


p - 608-646-0421 


c - 608-209-7768 


f - 608-873-5519 


e - mstacey@ci.stouqhton.wi.us 


Hours M-F 7:30 am - 4:30 pm 


Website: www.cityofstouqhton.com/pianninq 


"If-goviy fKc*uk. tjov^ C<MV do- bh or gou^ jWLvtJc you^ c^ourJ-t do- Uh YOTA/ a^e^ rt^M:" He*vry Ford 


From: Lisa Reeves [maiito:lreeves004(!a)amaii.com1 
Sent: Tuesday, January 05, 2016 4:41 PM 
To: Michael Stacey 
Cc: Michael Engelberger 
Subject: RE: Outdoor Furnace 


I really hope their request for ANY continued use of the furnace will be denied on Tuesday. 
Clearly they have not held up their end of the bargain, have likely violated clean air standards and should lose 
the privilege. 
Whatever they are burning is disgusting, and visitors to our beautiful downtown venues will certainly 
appreciate breathing clean air. 
Thanks again for the quick response. 
Lisa 


On Jan 5, 2016 4:26 PM, <mstacev(a)ci.stoughton.wi.us> wrote: 


Lisa, 


1 







All outdoor furnaces are banned from use. However, at the request of the owner of the property, the City 
Council will decide next Tuesday if the outdoor furnace will be allowed to be used until May of 2016. After 
May 2016 it would not be able to be used. We will convey your message to the Council. Michael Engleberger 
can also convey the message. 


Thanks for the info. 


lAUWoMy p. S f o ^ 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


City of Stoughton 


381 E. Main Street 


Stoughton, WI. 53589 


p - 608-646-0421 


c - 608-209-7768 


f - 608-873-5519 


e - mstacey@ci.stouqhton.wi.us 


Hours M-F 7:30 am - 4:30 pm 


Website: www.cityofstouqhton.com/planninq 


goi>uc-a<a/̂ Û î ^ He^^y Ford 


From: Lisa Reeves [mailto:lreeves004(g)amail.com1 
Sent: Tuesday, January 05, 2016 4:05 PM 
To: Michael Stacey 
Subject: Fwd: Outdoor Furnace 


2 







Looks like I had a typo the first round and my email did not get to you- so lets try again. 


Thanks! 


Forwarded message 
From: Lisa Reeves <lreeves004(a),gmail.com> 
Date: Tue, Jan 5, 2016 at 3:48 PM 
Subject: Outdoor Furnace 
To: mstacev(g),cistoughton.wi.us 


Cc: Donna Olson <dolson@ci.stoughton.wi.us>. MEngelberger@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


1 ran this by Mike Engelberger, and he suggested 1 contact you with my concern. 


1 understand outdoor wood burning furnaces were grandfathered in, but I am 99% sure that the business behind 
the chamber building is not just burning wood. Yesterday morning when 1 went by, there was thick smoke 
pouring from the exhaust pipe and the fumes were noxious. 


This has been an ongoing problem with this company during cold weather. 


Thanks in advance for your help in making sure they comply and any feedback you can provide. 


Lisa Reeves 


708 Eiiast Main Street 


3 





		10-R-3-2016-Resolution for Outdoor Furnance at 556 E Main St.pdf

		Outdoor Furnace backup materials.pdf

		Insert from: "3-Overson Outdoor Furnace Request.pdf"

		4F6D.pdf

		Slide Number  1

		Slide Number  2

		Slide Number  3







		Outdoor Stove Backup 2274.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) Land Division Request, Certified Survey Map 


(CSM) by James Steindl, for property located at 981 Collins Road, Town of Dunkirk, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommend Council approval 6 - 0 with the Mayor voting  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None 


 
File Number: 


 
R-4-2016 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 12, 2016 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on December 14, 2015 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed and recommend 


the Common Council approve the proposed ETJ Land Division (CSM) request by James Steindl, for 


property located at 981 Collins Road, Town of Dunkirk, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the certified survey map request is proposed to combine 2 parcels which are owned by the 


applicant; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 


determined by the Planning Commission and Common Council. This property is contained in the City’s 


Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is identified on the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map as 


Agricultural/Rural; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 


division (CSM) request by James Steindl, for property located at 981 Collins Road, Town of Dunkirk, 


Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


  


  


 


   


 


 


  


  


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\981 Collins Road ETJ CSM.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\12-14-15\Planning Info\ETJ Steindl Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 4, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the December 14, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting and
Common Council meeting of January 12, 2016.


1. James Steindl requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to combine 2 parcels of
land at 981 Collins Road, Town of Dunkirk.
This extra-territorial zoning request is to allow Owner-Applicant James Steindl to combine 2
parcels of land at his residence. Land divisions with the City’s 1.5 mile ETJ area require
Planning Commission review and Common Council approval. The resolution, CSM and
related materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary. Staff recommends
approval contingent on Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval.







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 12-14-15.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, December 14, 2015 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice Chair; Matt Hanna;
Todd Krcma; Michael Maloney; and Pat O’Connor
Absent: Scott Truehl
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey
Press: None
Guests: Tom Vavra; Tarnam Dhillon; Dennis Steinkraus; Corey Potter


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of November 9, 2015.
Motion by Christianson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by O’Connor. Motion
carried 6 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson reported ordinance 18 and 19 were unanimously approved.


4. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments. There were no questions.


5. Matt Hamacher requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to split the property
at 3279 State Highway 138, Town of Rutland.
Scheel explained the request. O’Connor questioned the commercial use. Scheel stated it
was for a lawn care business.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional request contingent on the Town of Rutland and Dane County approval, 2nd by
Krcma. Motion carried 6 – 0.


6. James Steindl requests extra-territorial jurisdictional approval to combine 2 parcels at
981 Collins Road, Town of Dunkirk.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by O’Connor to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial
jurisdictional request contingent on the Town of Dunkirk and Dane County approval, 2nd by
Christianson. Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Tom Vavra, representing Dhillon Petroleum LLC requests to rezone the properties at
1009 W. Main Street and 308 S. Gjertson Street from PB – Planned Business to PD –
Planned Development (General Development Plan) to accommodate a retail building
reconstruction including a drive-thru. Tabled on November 9, 2015.
Scheel introduced the request.



mstacey

Highlight







210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. City-County Bldg, Room 116Madison, WI 53703-3342 Phone: 608.266.9106 Fax: 608.267.1540


Dane County Planning & Development
Land Division Review


November 25, 2015


Attention to whom it may concern:


Re: Certified Survey Map application # 9817


Dane County Planning & Development is in receipt of a proposed certified survey map
application. Attached with this letter is a copy of the survey map.


Please review the proposal and comment at your earlier convenience such that the Dane County
staff will recognize your position and concerns in acting in this matter.


Reviewing Agency:


 Clerk, Town of Dunkirk
 Clerk, City of Stoughton (extra-territorial jurisdiction)
 Public Health – John Hausbeck
 Dane County Surveyor – Dan Frick


If you have any comments regarding this proposal please forward them to me no later than
December 16, 2015.


Sincerely,


Dan Everson
Assistant Zoning Administrator
608.267.1541



















 


Planning
Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong),
swisstopo, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the


December 2, 2015
0 0.85 1.70.425 mi


0 1 20.5 km


1:35,148


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line







 


Planning
Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, Intermap, increment P Corp.,
GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL,
Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong),
swisstopo, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the


Tax Parcels
December 2, 2015


0 0.2 0.40.1 mi


0 0.3 0.60.15 km


1:8,787


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line





		11-R-4-2016-981 Collins Road ETJ CSM-Steindl.pdf

		Steindl ETJ CSM Request.pdf



